
 
 

 
 

 
NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE ARTS, CULTURE AND RECREATION SPC 

 
TO BE HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, DAME STREET, DUBLIN 2. 

 
ON MONDAY 22 JANUARY 2018 AT 9.30 AM 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
MONDAY 22 JANUARY 2018

  PAGE 
 
1   Minutes of meeting held on 13th November 2017   

 
3 - 6 

2   Presentation on Business To Arts and Dublin City Council Partnership Overview - 
Andrew Hetherington, Chief Executive   
 

7 - 16 

3   Presentation on Arts Education and Learning - Erasmus+ EU Funding and Project 
Implementation - Liz Coman, Asst. Arts Officer   
 

17 - 26 

4   Report on the Passport for Leisure and Over 65's Scheme - Jim Beggan, Senior 
Executive Officer   
 

27 - 28 

5   Verbal update on the Establishment of a Dublin City Council Cultural Company - 
Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer   
 

 

6   Motion Submitted by Cllr.  Rebecca Moynihan 
 

“Street art is an emerging form of public art which can enhance the 
streetscape of a city. Conscious of the lack of clarity and guidelines 
around the production of street art this SPC agrees to develop a 'Street 
and Mural Art' policy for the City”. 

 

 

7   End of Year Report on the Dublin City Local Economic and Community Plan 2016 
- 2021 (LECP)   
 

29 - 60 

8   Executive Summary on Creative Ireland Dublin City Programme 2017 - Margaret 
Hayes, Dublin City Librarian 
 
Click link to view full report https://dublincity.sharefile.eu/d-s62add2f4ae74c69b 
 

61 - 62 

9   Verbal Report on the Implementation of the Cultural Strategy - Ray Yeates, City 
Arts Officer   
 

 

10   Verbal update on the New City Library at Parnell Square - Margaret Hayes, Dublin 
City Librarian   
 

 

https://dublincity.sharefile.eu/d-s62add2f4ae74c69b


 

11   Management Update   
 

63 - 110 

12   Approved Minutes of the Commemorations Sub-Committee meeting held 18th 
September 2017.   
 

111 - 
112 

13   Approved Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee meeting held 18th 
September 2017   
 

113 - 
116 

14   Approved  Minutes of the Sub-Committee on Artists Workspace meeting held 25th 
September 2017   
 

117 - 
118 

15   Approved Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group meeting held 28th 
September 2017   
 

119 - 
122 

16   Approved Minutes of Dublin City Sports and Wellbeing Partnership Advisory 
Board meeting held 9th October 2017   
 

123 - 
128 

17   Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Commemorations Sub-Committee meeting held 
23rd November 2017   
 

129 - 
130 

18   Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee meeting held 
23rd November 2017   
 

131 - 
132 

19   Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group meeting held 
30th November 2017   
 

133 - 
136 

20   A.O.B.   
 

 

 



 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE ARTS, CULTURE AND RECREATION SPC MEETING 

 
HELD ON MONDAY 13TH NOVEMBER, 2017 

 
 

 
 

Members: 

Cllr. Vincent Jackson (Chair) 

Cllr. Rebecca Moynihan  

Cllr. Emma Murphy 

Cllr. Greg Kelly  

Cllr. John Lyons 

Cllr. Séan Paul Mahon 

Cllr. Claire Byrne 

Cllr. Mary Freehill 

Cllr. Aine Clancy 

Cllr Gary Gannon 

Cllr Claire O’Connor 

Cllr Anne Feeney 

Cllr Séamas McGrattan 

Cllr Damien O’Farrell 

Gerry Kerr, National Council for the 

Blind of Ireland 

Sarah Costigan, The Little Museum of 

Dublin 

Conor McQuillan, Public Partnership 

Network 

Ciara Higgins, Royal Irish Academy of 

Music 

 

Others Present: 

Cllr. Mannix Flynn 

 

Apologies: 

Elaina Ryan, Children’s Books Ireland 

 

 

Officials present: 

Declan Wallace,  Assistant Chief 

Executive  

Richard Shakespeare, Assistant Chief 

Executive 

Margaret Hayes, City Librarian 

Leslie Moore, City Parks Superintendent 

Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian, 

Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer 

Barbara Dawson, Director, Dublin City 

Gallery, The Hugh Lane 

Alison Lyons, Director of Dublin 

UNESCO City of Literature 

Jim Beggan, Senior Executive Officer 

Donncha O’ Dulaing, Senior  Executive 

Officer 

Ruairi O’Cuiv, Public Art Manager 

Jackie O’Reilly, Administrative Officer  

Minutes by Paula Ebbs 

 

 
 

Page 3



The Chair welcomed two new sectoral members.  Sarah Costigan, The Little Museum of 
Dublin who replaced Simon O’Connor.  Conor McQuillan, Public Partnership Network 
replaced Sarah O’Neill. 
 

1. Minutes of meeting held on 11th September 2017. 
 
 Action:  Agreed. 
 

2. Presentation on the UNESCO City of Literature – Alison Lyons, Director of Dublin 
UNESCO City of Literature. 

 
 Alison gave an overview of the Dublin UNESCO City of Literature’s office. 
 Dublin is one of 28 cities of literature whose mission is to support, animate and 
 develop Dublin as a UNESCO City of Literature, reflecting a capital city where the 
 literary ecosystem is creative, dynamic and sustainable – and positioning Dublin as a 
 valued partner, actively contributing to the UNESCO Creative Cities Network. 
 
 Action:  Presentation welcomed and noted. Cllr. Moynihan was thanked 
   for her support and attendance at the annual UCCN Conference. 
  

3. Presentation on the Dublin City Gallery The Hugh Lane Draft Strategic Plan 2018 -
2023 – Barbara Dawson, Director. 

 
 Action: Presentation welcomed and noted. The Assistant Chief Executive 

advised that additional funding was approved for capital works in the 
Gallery over the next 3 years. 

 
a) Dublin City Gallery The Hugh Lane Draft Strategic Plan 2018 - 2023 

   
 The Strategic Plan sets out in detail the scale of the ambition and how to deliver it.  
 By the end of the five years, this plan will deliver an outstanding and acclaimed 
 Education and Outreach programme, impressive and enviable Acquisitions to the 
 Collections, an outstanding Conservation Department that is expert in contemporary 
 media and compelling and exciting Exhibitions which will attract record audiences.  
  
 Action:  Noted. Dublin City Gallery The Hugh Lane Draft Strategic Plan  
   2018 – 2023 to be submitted to the full City Council for   
   approval. 
 

Cllr. Clancy requested an update on the five year strategic plan in 18 
months once approved by City Council. 

 
4. Report of the Chief Executive, Owen Keegan, on the establishment of a Dublin City 

Council Cultural Company – Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer 
 

Following discussion members proposed that two elected members from the Arts 
SPC should take up positions on the Board. Members requested that employment 
contracts of the new company should be in line with best practice 

 
 Action:   Report Noted. It was agreed to recommend to the City Council to have 
   two elected members of the Arts SPC take up positions on the  
   Board of the Company. 
   Regular reports on the new Company to be brought to this SPC. 
 

Page 4



5. Review of the Passport for Leisure and Over 65’s Scheme – Jim Beggan, Senior 
Executive Officer 

 
 Jim Beggan, Senior Executive Officer outlined the Proposals for the Passport for 
 Leisure Scheme, Old Age Pensioners (Over 55’s) Review and Proposals for OAP 
 Schemes to come into effect from 1st January 2018. 
 

Members raised concerns with regard to the price increase and the consultation with 
PPN. 

 
 Management stated that we needed some level of sustainability in the terms of the 
 format we put forward and the increases proposed were reasonable. 
 
  It was agreed to proceed with 2 proposals from the 1st January 2018: 
 

a. The Passport for Leisure Scheme will only be available to individuals who can 
provide proof of address of living or working in the Dublin City administrative 
area.  
 

b. The age requirement for availing of the Passport for Leisure Scheme will be 
raised to 60 years from 1st January 2018.  

 
 Action: Report to be submitted to the January SPC following consultation with 
   the PPN.  
  

6. Report on George Bernard Shaw House - Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian. 
  
 City Architect’s Division has carried out a feasibility  study, including a preliminary 
 schedule of works, into the adaption of the house as a residence for writers. 
 
 The study concludes that the proposed interventions and the reinstated use are 
 appropriate to, and will enhance the Heritage significance of the house as a 
 Protected Structure.  
 
 The feasibility report sets the timetable for the programme of works which is 
 estimated at 32 to 38 weeks. 
 

A title search on the property was undertaken by the Law Department and a report 
was received late last week.  
 
Action: The Assistant Chief Executive advised we will proceed with plans to 

adapt the house as a residence for writers with immediate effect. The 
process is estimated at 38 weeks. Reports to be brought to the SPC. 

 
7. Report on the Implementation of the Cultural Strategy – Arts Education and Learning 

– Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer 
 

 Action: Report Noted 
  

8. Verbal update on the New City Library at Parnell Square – Margaret Hayes, Dublin 
City Librarian. 

 
 The City Librarian informed the members that the project is proceeding well and the 
 architects have been instructed to prepare a planning application for submission in 
 the first half of 2018. 

Page 5



 The Chair informed the members that the Assistant Chief Executive had resigned 
 from the Board of Kennedy Wilson and was replaced by the Chair of this SPC. 
 Action:  Keep on Agenda for regular updates. 
 

9. Management Update. 
Action:  Report noted. 
 

10. Proposed Dates for the Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC  2018 meetings 
 Action: Agreed 
 

11. Approved Minutes of Dublin City Sports and Wellbeing Partnership Advisory Board 
meeting held 15th May 2017 

 Action: Agreed 

12. Approved Minutes of the Commemorations Sub-Committee meeting held 17th May 
2017  
Action: Agreed 
 

13. Approved Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee meeting held 17th May 
2017  

 Action: Agreed 
 

14. Approved Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group meeting held 28th June 
2017  
Action: Agreed 
 

15. Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Commemorations Sub-Committee meeting held 18th 
September 2017. 

 Action: Noted 
 

16. Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee meeting held 
18th September 2017 

 Action: Noted 

17. Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Sub-Committee on Artists Workspace meeting held  
25th September 2017 
Action: Noted 
 

18. Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group meeting held 28th 
September 2017 
Action: Noted 
 

19. Breviate of Draft Minutes of Dublin City Sports and Wellbeing Partnership Advisory 
Board meeting held 9th October 2017 
Action:  Noted  
 

20. A.O.B. 

There was no business under A.O.B.  

 

________________________   

Cllr Vincent Jackson, 
Chairperson. 

Page 6



 

Business to Arts  | Developing Creative Partnerships 

P
age 7



Business to Arts’ Mission… 

What we do… 

We create collaborations that unlock creativity & generate solutions which 
benefit our stakeholders 
We work with the cultural sector to enhance capacity of artists and arts 
organisations with their executive and their boards 
We work with our stakeholders to develop new initiatives and ideas 
around increasing private support of the arts 
We are a membership-based not-for-profit organisation funded by our 
stakeholders (CHY 9871)  
Dublin City Council are Patrons  and Partners of Business to Arts 
 

We build creative partnerships between the arts and business; so that the 
creativity of the arts and the acumen of the business community enhance 
each other and drive world-class performance in Ireland.  

Business to Arts  | Developing Creative Partnerships 

P
age 8



Docklands Arts Fund 
Established June 2015 (Dublin City Council Arts Plan)  
Pilot phase (2.5 year) completed December 2017 
Partners    

• Dublin City Council - Arts Office 
• Dublin City Council – Docklands Division 
• Business to Arts 

Objective 
“To enhance develop and grow the practice, appreciation and development of 
quality arts experiences in the Docklands Area. Fostering a partnership with 
artists, businesses, residents, educators and appropriate agencies.” 

 
Equal investment in 2017 (€10,400)  

• Salary, infrastructure  and marketing costs 
• Fundraise from resident companies & individuals 
• Annual & project-based open call processes  
• Arts Practice / project development & support 

Business to Arts  | Developing Creative Partnerships 

P
age 9



Docklands Arts Fund 
Projects /Investment Generated for 2018 (<€65,000) 
• Martina Galvin & 3 x Docklands Primary Schools  ‘Coastlines, Maps & Melons’ 

(Visual Arts – 1 Year) 
• Monica Munoz & Dance Ireland with Docklands Residents aged 6 – 10 Years 

‘Princesses can be Pirates’ (Dance – 1 Year) 
• Catherine Ann Cullen, Imogen Gunner & 2 x Docklands Primary Schools 

‘Street Songs and Sea Shanties for the 21st Century’ (Literature & Music)  
• Kelvin Mann & Stoney Road Press ‘Semi-Detached Hi-Rise’ (Visual Arts) 
• A&L Goodbody Writer-in-Residence (Literature - 3 year) 

• Catherine Ann Cullen & St. Joseph’s Co-Ed Primary School 
• Walkers Photographer-in-Residence (Visual Arts - 3 Year) 

• Kate Nolan & C.B.S. Westland Row 

Business to Arts  | Developing Creative Partnerships 

P
age 10



Sample of Recent  Positive Media  

Business to Arts  | Developing Creative Partnerships 

Irish Times (17/10/17) At the announcement of the recipients of the 2017 Small 
Grants Scheme under the Docklands Arts Fund, a partnership between Business to 
Arts, Dublin City Council and Docklands local businesses and individuals. See 
businesstoarts.ie/artsfund 

P
age 11



Sample of Recent  Positive Media  

Business to Arts  | Developing Creative Partnerships 

Irish Examiner (03/05/17) Artist and Illustrator Chris Judge with his daughter Joey, 3, at the official 
launch of his 35metre mural tribute to Dublin’s in the Docklands #DrawmeDocklands 

P
age 12



Fundraising Fellowship Dublin 
Established July 2016 
24- month programme for fellows & 4 x cultural organisations 
Partners 
• Dublin City Council’s Dublin’s Culture Connects 
• Business to Arts 
• Participant Cultural Organisations   
Aims & Objectives 
• Provide 4 x Dublin-based, arts, cultural or community organisations part-funding 

(max €15k P.A.) toward the employment of full-time marketing & fundraising 
human resources, contracted over a 24-month period  

• Provide 4 x Fellows with a structured programme of training and mentorship 
developed by Business to Arts and Dublin City Council (valued at €80,000 per 
organisation)    

• Equip 4 x Fellows and their organisations with skills to build capacity in their own 
organisations and to share the their skills and knowledge with 4  x smaller local 
organisation / partners 

Investment (€100,000 per annum) 

Business to Arts  | Developing Creative Partnerships 

P
age 13



Fundraising Fellowship Dublin 
People & Organisations Invested in June 2017 – 19 

Dublin Theatre Festival 
• New Executive : Paula Weir* 
• Local Organisation : Dublin Cycling 

Helium Children’s Art & Health 
• New Executive : Anna McCarthy 
• Local Organisation : Common Ground 

Fishamble Theatre Company 
• New Executive : Chandrika Naranyanan-Mohan 
• Local Organisation : 100 Archive  

Temple Bar Gallery & Studios 
• New Executive : Muriel Foxton 
• Local Organisation : Calcutta Run 

Local Community Engagement 
• 60 representatives from local community organisations 

• Introduction to Marketing Seminar 
• Introduction to Fundraising Seminar 

Business to Arts  | Developing Creative Partnerships 

P
age 14



Sample of Recent Positive Media 

Business to Arts  | Developing Creative Partnerships 

• Sunday Times 10/09/17 ‘Reap Rewards of a Fundraising Career’ 
• Irish Examiner 18/08/17 ‘Celebrating Fusion of Business and Arts’ 
• Hot Press 31/08/17 ‘Dublin City Council’s Dublin’s Culture Connects and 

Business to Arts Offering Communities Great Opportunity’

P
age 15



Next Steps 
 
Docklands Arts Fund  

• Phase One / Pilot : Complete & Evaluate (Dec 2017 – Mar 2018) 
• Phase Two ? : Consolidate, Reinvest & Grow / Cease? (2018 – 21) 

 
Fundraising Fellowship, Dublin  

• Fellowship One : Complete, Monitor Return on Investment (2018 - 19) 
• Fellowship Two ? : Evaluate & Reinvest ? (2018 – 20) 

 
 
Thank You & Further Information  
Andrew Hetherington 
Chief Executive  
Business to Arts 
E | Andrew@businesstoarts.ie 
M | +353 87 8307690 

Business to Arts  | Developing Creative Partnerships 

P
age 16

mailto:Andrew@businesstoarts.ie


 
Presentation for Dublin City Council  

 
Strategic Policy Committee 

 
22 January 2018   

 

Erasmus+ EU Funding and Project Implementation 

P
age 17



P
age 18



Visual Thinking Strategies is a research-based 

teaching methodology based on the work of cognitive 

psychologist, Abigail Housen and veteran museum 

educator Philip Yenawine that supports learner-

centred thinking and feeling when looking at art 

objects. 

P
age 19



VTS Neighbourhood Schools - NEIC /Central Area  

Teachers and Principals list as of Dec 2017 

1 Claire Halpin  Artist & Coordinator 

2 Deirdre Gartland  Central Model Senior School (Vice Principal)  

3 Brigid Kildee  Central  Model Senior School 

4 Marsha Keating  Central Model Senior School  

5 Evita Coyle  Central Model Senior School  

6 Pat Courtney St Vincents Boys National School (Principal)  

7 Orla Doyle St Vincents Boys National School   

8 Aedin Clynes St Vincents Boys National School 

9 Niamh McGill  St Vincents Boys National School  

10 Katie Culkin  St Vincents Boys National School  

11 Margaret O'Connor  St Vincents GNS (Principal)  

12 Pamela Wolfe  St Vincents GSN  

13 Bernie Carroll  St Vincents GNS  

14 Louise Gillick  St Louise's Pre-School (Principal)  

15 Bernie  St Louise's Pre-School  

16 Patsy O'Keefe O'Connells National School (Principal)  

17 Sioban O'Keefe O'Connells National School  

18 Eiblin McGarry  St Mary's National School (Principal)  

19 Evita Cyle  St Mary's National School  

20 Maire O'Higgins Larkin Community College (Vice Principal)  

21 Sioban McKenzie Larkin Community College  

22 Declan Quinn Larkin Community College  

23   St Mary's Secondary School  (Principal)  

24 Cathy Kavanagh St Mary's Secondary School  

25 Nadine Cunningham  St Mary's Secondary School  

Professional Educators –  
From early years settings; primary school classroom teachers; secondary school (art) teachers; art educators (freelance museum and gallery 
educators, including teaching artists). 

P
age 20

C:/Users/42254/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary Internet Files/Content.MSO/Niamh.McGill@hotmail.com


Potential EU Project Partnership  

P
age 21



P
age 22

https://www.google.ie/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiivqzxnsvYAhWpKcAKHZNiBF0QjRwIBw&url=https://www.iwcollege.ac.uk/information/study-information/international-courses-information/erasmus/&psig=AOvVaw38XrFPN4VGtYPCvMD9GRnN&ust=1515599668663224
https://www.google.ie/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiivqzxnsvYAhWpKcAKHZNiBF0QjRwIBw&url=https://www.iwcollege.ac.uk/information/study-information/international-courses-information/erasmus/&psig=AOvVaw38XrFPN4VGtYPCvMD9GRnN&ust=1515599668663224


‘Permission to Wonder’ 

 

Project Team 

 

P
age 23



P
age 24



IMPACT! 

P
age 25





 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 

22nd January 2018 

 
Item No. 4 

 

 

 

 

 

Review of the Passport for Leisure scheme 

 

At the November SPC meeting the review was discussed and the proposals agreed in 
relation to the requirement that the scheme be available to over 60’s and those living or 
working in the City Council administrative area. However further discussion / consultation 
was requested in relation to the pricing structure in particular the “pay as you go rate” and 
also the impact of moving the scheme from the company currently providing the card service 
would have on the card holders who receive a broader range of information on services 
beyond those provided by Dublin City Council Sports and Recreation Services. There was  
also a request that a scheme be put in place to address the needs of disabled people who 
want to avail of services / facilities provided by Dublin City Council’s   Sports and Recreation 
Services. Following on from initial discussions it is proposed to continue the consultation 
process with a view to bringing a revised scheme to the March SPC.      

 

Jim Beggan, 
Senior Executive Officer. 

Page 27





 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 

22nd January 2018 

 

Item No. 7 

 

 
 

 
Dublin City Local Economic and Community Plan 2016 – 2021 

End of Year Action Plan 2017 

Goal 1: Ensure that all residents and visitors, regardless of social or cultural background, feel a sense of ownership and 

engagement with the City, feel safe in their communities and are welcome to fully participate in the community, social, cultural, business and 

political life of the City. 

Objective 1.1 Enhance quality of life in the City by supporting individuals and groups to actively participate in their communities 

 Action Responsibility Area Timeline Measurement Current Status  

Action 7 Provide venues and 
channels for citizen 
consultation with 
Dublin City Council 
and other agencies 

Dublin City 
Council Public 
Participation 
Network 

Libraries 2017-2021 Number of venues / 
consultation / online 
promotions and 
opportunities in 
2017 

Public Health 
Survey conducted in 
partnership with St. 
Vincent’s 
Healthcare Group: 
1,300 responses  
 

P
age 29



Action 9 Maximise young 
people’s 
participation on 
Dublin City 
Comhairle na nÓg 

Comhairle na 
nÓg 
Dublin City 
Council 

Social Inclusion 2017 Number of schools 
represented and 
supported 
Number on 
Comhairle na nÓg 

46 schools (21 
primary, 25 
secondary) 63 
members on 
Comhairle. 

 

Objective 1.2 Address safety issues through the JPC structures, civic engagement, education, awareness-raising and community involvement 

 Action Responsibility Area 
 

Timeline Measurement Current Status 

Action15 Manage and 
participate in the 
Dublin City and 
Local Joint 
Policing 
Committees and 
develop annual 
work plans to 
support the JPC 
Strategic Plan 
2015 - 2021 

Dublin City 
Council 
An Garda 
Síochána 

Secretariat 2017  
Agreed actions 
delivered 

6 meetings held. 
 
Annual Report 2016 
approved by City 
Council in September 
2017. 
Both the City JPC and 
the 5 Area Sub-
committees report on 
their assigned actions 
as part of this report.  
 
11 presentations 
made to meetings 
during 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 30



Action 16 Coordinate the 
High Level Group 
on Street Issues in 
the City 

Dublin City 
Council 

Secretariat 2017  
 
Number of actions 
initiated 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Number of clients 
supported 

6 meetings held. 
 
Begging Report 
produced March 
2017. 
 
Assertive Case 
Management Team 
(ACMT) continues to 
liaise with DRHE and 
HSE to address 
addiction and housing 
issues. 
 
59 clients supported 
during 2017 
 
 

Action 19 Support the 
Dublin City Centre 
Business Forum 

Dublin City 
Council  

Secretariat 2017  
Number of agreed 
actions completed 

6 meetings held. 
 
9 presentations made 
to DCCBF meetings 
during 2017. 
 
Ongoing issues 
addressed at each 
meeting. 

 

 

P
age 31



Objective 1.3 Ensure active and welcome engagement by people of all cultures in the political, social, cultural and business life of the City 

 Action Responsibility Area Timeline Measurement Current Status 

Action 20 Promote 
integration by 
implementing the 
Dublin City 
Integration 
Strategy 2016-
2019 

Dublin City 
Council 
 

 

Social Inclusion 2017 Number of actions 
completed 

15  actions 
completed. 

 

Goal 2: Work in partnership with communities to promote social inclusion, tackle poverty and disadvantage, and promote 

participation, empowerment and positive social change. 

Objective 2.1 Use a community development approach to achieve social inclusion 

 Action Responsibility 
(DCC 
Department 
and Section 
Name) 
 
 
 
 
 

Area 
 

Timeline Measurement Current Status 

P
age 32



Action 26 Provide a free 
library 
service/prison 
library 
service/mobile 
service and 
facilities to deliver 
community 
development and 
learning 
 

Dublin City 
Council 

Libraries 2017 Free library services 
maintained 
Number of projects 
delivered 
Number of loans 

Achieved- Statistics 
not available until 
January 2018. 
“Communiversity” 
Programme of 
community learning  
extended from 2 
branches to 4 
Libraries  99 
participants  

Action 28 Arrange and 
participate in the 
annual Social 
Inclusion Week 

Dublin City 
Council 
SICAP 
Programme 
Implementers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Social Inclusion 2017 Events and activities 
held 

19 events held 
between 14th 
September and 21st 
October. 

 

P
age 33



Goal 4: Put in place the infrastructure that positions Dublin as a safe, environmentally sustainable, vibrant, diverse and attractive 

place to live, work, visit and invest in by planning and providing for balanced and sustainable social and economic development, catering for a 

growing population. 

4.2 Ensure the sustainable provision of the key infrastructural requirements of the city, sufficient to cater for a growing population, and 

long-term capacity needs 

 Action Responsibility 
(DCC Department 
and Section 
Name) 

Area 
 

Timeline Measurement Current Status 

Action 96 Maintain and 
upgrade Wi-Fi 
availability in 
branch libraries 
and provide free 
access to the 
internet in all 
city branches 

Dublin City 
Council 

Libraries  2017 Wi-Fi upgrade 
complete in 
Ballyfermot and 
Raheny 
 
Number of internet 
sessions 

Wi-Fi upgrade 
completed  
 
 
 
No. of Internet 
Sessions not available 
until January 2018 

 

 

 

 

P
age 34



4.3 Improve the quality of Dublin City's environment through the delivery of services in a sustainable manner, recognising local, regional 

and national responsibilities and implications 

 Action Responsibility 
(DCC Department 
and Section 
Name) 

Area 
 

Timeline Measurement Current Status 

Action 98 Provide energy 
assessment kits 
through the 
libraries system 
to enable 
individuals to 
self assess 
energy usage 
and implement 
measures to 
reduce energy 
consumption 

Dublin City 
Council 

Libraries  2017 Number of kits 
available 
 
 
 
Number of kits loaned  

Increased number 
from 11 to 67 
available in all 
branches. 
 
415 loans to date. 
Won the Consumer 
Category at EU 
Sustainability Awards 
2017.  

 

 

 

 

P
age 35



Goal 5: Provide and protect a range of public, safe and affordable amenities activities and facilities that are relevant and accessible 

to people of all ages and abilities and that contribute to the health and well-being of all. 

5.1 Maximise the use of available facilities, community venues and public space across the City to encourage healthier communities 

 Action Responsibility 
 

Area 
 

Timeline Measurement Current Status 

Action 112 Develop a 
Conservation 
Volunteer 
Programme for 
Bull Island 

Dublin City 
Council 

Parks & Landscape 2017  Volunteer 
Programme in place  

Completed. 
Volunteer 
Programme in 
operation since May 
2017. 
 
 

Action 114 Implement the 
Dublin City Tree 
Strategy 2016 – 
2020 

Dublin City 
Council 

Parks & Landscape 2017 Number of actions 
delivered 

16,711 additional 
trees were planted. 
The annual works 
programmes were 
implemented in each 
area which included 
tree care 
management. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 36



Action 115 Complete a 
Parks and Open 
Space Strategy 

Dublin City 
Council  

Parks & Landscape 2017 Public consultation 
and strategy 
complete 

Final draft report 
stage –  Was 
presented to Arts, 
Culture and 
Recreation SPC and  
Area Committees. 
Due to go to City 
Council early 2018. 

Action 116 Implement the 
Public Realm 
Masterplan 
Programme 

Dublin City 
Council 

Parks & Landscape 2017 Number of public 
realm initiatives 
implemented  
 
 
 
 
 
Amount of 
development 
contributions drawn 
down 

6 public realm 
projects are currently 
in progress and at 
various stages (i.e. 
Part 8, design team 
procurement, under 
construction). 
 
 

Action 117 Progress work 
on Parks Capital 
Projects 

Dublin City 
Council 

Parks & Landscape 2017 Projects Completed 
 

Completed capital 
projects include 
Sports Pavilions, All-
Weather Pitches, Tea 
Rooms and a new 
Public Park. 
 
 
 
 

P
age 37



Action 119 Carry out 
feasibility study 
in St Anne’s 
Park for the first 
Dublin City 
Community 
Farm 

Dublin City 
Council 

Parks & Landscape 2017 Feasibility study 
complete. 
Community 
consultation 
commenced  

Community Farm to 
commence Q1 – 
2018. 
 
 

Action 120 Carry out 
feasibility study 
for Discovery 
Centre Bull 
Island & 
procure design 
team to 
progress 
planning 

Dublin City 
Council 

Parks & Landscape  2017 Completion of 
feasibility study. 
 
Commence public 
consultation to 
progress planning  
 

Design Team to be 
appointed Q1 2018. 
 
Public Consultation 
underway. 

Action 121 Implement 
Conservation 
Plans for 
historic parks   

Dublin City 
Council  

Parks & Landscape Ongoing  Complete Part 8 
process for Mountjoy 
Square re restoration 
of historic layout. 
Commence upgrade 
work on follies in St. 
Anne’s Park 

Part 8 process 
completed. 
 
 
Upgrade work on the 
Follies almost 
complete. 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 38



Action 122 Implement two-
year 
programme to 
increase 
accessibility to 
the library 
service 

Dublin City 
Council 
 

Libraries 2017 
 

Number of works 
carried out 

Kevin St: Contractor 
to hand over the 
building for fit out 
Mid December.  
Inchicore: Design for 
access works 
ongoing. 
Coolock: Design 
complete-Part 8 
Plannning process 
commenced 
Tenure: Feasibility 
report being 
conducted  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 39



5.2 Proactively seek out opportunities to develop additional recreational and sporting facilities and activities in the City 

 Action Responsibility 
(DCC Department 
and Section 
Name) 

Area 
 

Timeline Measurement Current Status 

Action 129 Implement the 
Sports and 
Well-Being 
Strategy STRIDE 
2017 – 2020 to 
promote active 
living for all  

Dublin City 
Council  

Sport & Recreation 2017 Number of actions 
implemented  

Strategic Goal 1 – 
Places & Spaces: 1 
initiative in progress 
(Facility & Open 
Spaces audit in 
progress) 
 
Strategic Goal 2 – 
Programmes &  
Services: 2 initiatives 
completed, 2 in 
progress (New core 
suite of programmes 
developed and 
implemented; HOA 
with co-funded 
officers signed). 
 
Strategic Goal 3 – 
Promoting Sport and 
Inspiring People: 3 
initiatives in progress 
(New DCSWP page to 
be developed within 

P
age 40



new DCC website; 
Increased usage of 
social media to 
promote work; 
Committee set up to 
plan and deliver a 
festival of sport and 
promotional 
campaign during the 
European Week of 
Sport 2018) 
 
Strategic Goal 4 – 
Good Practice: 1 
initiative complete, 2 
in progress.  
(Mandatory training 
schedule for Sport 
Officers developed 
and in progress; Sport 
Officer 
communication plan 
developed; new 
coach recruitment 
policy near 
completion) 
 
 
 
 

P
age 41



Action 130 Increase 
participation in 
sport through 
the provision of 
facilities, 
programmes 
and services  

Dublin City 
Council 
 

Sport & Recreation 2017 Number of people 
using facilities 
 
Number of Dublin 
City Council Sport 
Officers and Sport 
Specific Officers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Number of 
participants in 
programmes 
 

Not available until 
early 2018. 
 
18 Sport Officers 
20 Co-funded Sport 
specific Officers in 
Soccer, Boxing, 
Rugby, Cricket and 
Rowing 
1 HSE Physical 
Activity Promotion 
co-funded Officer 
 
Figures to end of 
October 2017: 
Sport Officers 648 
programmes, 74,331 
participants. 
Football Officers, 
187programmes, 
40,896 participants. 
Boxing Officers, 249 
programmes, 16,902 
participants. 
Rugby Officers, 157 
programmes, 23,992 
participants. 
Cricket Officer, 103 
programmes, 20,154 
participants. 

P
age 42



Rowing Officer, 277 
programmes, 18,780 
participants. 
HSE Officer, 27 
programmes, 3,433 
participants. 

Action 131 Identify projects 
for Sports 
Capital Grant 
funding and 
support local 
sports groups to 
make 
applications 

Dublin City 
Council 

Sport & Recreation 2017 Number of projects 
identified 
 
Number of 
applications made 
 
Number of successful 
applications 

22 
 
 
22 
 
14 (and 4 still to be 
decided on) 

 

5.3 Promote healthy lifestyles and well-being in communities 

 Action Responsibility Area 
 

Timeline Measurement Current Status 

Action 139 Implement the 
Dublin City Play 
Plan 2012 - 
2017 
 

Dublin City 
Council 

Parks & Landscape 2017 No of actions 
implemented  
 

32 key actions under 
the five key themes 
of the city play plan 
have been 
implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 43



Action 140 Promote well-
being through 
the delivery of 
an annual 
programme of 
library events, 
projects and 
collections 

Dublin City 
Council 

Libraries 2017 Number of events / 
programmes 
delivered 
 
 
 
 
Number of collections 
promoted 

4 regular scheduled 
programmes for 
people with mental 
health difficulties.  
5 events promoting 
good health.  
 
2 Health Collections 
promoted : 
Bibliotherapy and 
Healthy Ireland 
collections . New 
partnership with 
Healthy Ireland  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 44



Goal 6: Maximise opportunities and support for the creative industries and cultural and artistic sectors to develop. Promote 

the Irish language and access to cultural experiences for all through the provision of diverse cultural artistic programming. 

6.1 Promote the development of the creative industries, bringing together individuals, organisations and businesses for the development 

of the sector 

 Action Responsibility Area Timeline Measurement Current Status 

Action 152 Support 
creative 
industries 
through the 
provision of a 
Design Centre 
and music 
performance 
space as part of 
the new Library 
in Parnell 
Square Cultural 
Quarter 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dublin City 
Council 

Libraries 
 

2017-2020 Progress achieved Planning application 
to be submitted  by 
mid 2018.  
Work is currently 
being done to secure 
the properties 
(securing doors and 
windows). 

P
age 45



Action 153 Support artists 
through 
showcasing 
their work in 
exhibitions and 
programming, 
both in the 
Hugh Lane 
Gallery and 
community 

Dublin City 
Council 

Hugh Lane 
Gallery 

2017 Number of 
exhibitions and 
programmes which 
support artists 

2 solo exhibitions by 
Irish artists. 
1 International Group 
exhibition 
representing 20 
artists including 2 
Irish artists. 
Lectures and talks by 
artistrs were 
programmed to 
complement the 
exhibitions. 
Artist Seamus Nolan 
was commissioned to 
deliver a socially 
engaged project 
under the CAPP 
programme.  Seamus 
commenced working 
with the travelling 
community and their 
archives in 2017 
which will culminate 
in an exhibition in the 
gallery in 2018. This is 
a collaboration 
between the gallery 
and CREATE and 
under the European 
CAPP Project. 

P
age 46



6.2 Develop and promote a community based infrastructure to encourage the use of the Irish language 

 Action Responsibility Area Timeline Measurement Current Status 

Action 158 Promote the use 
of Irish in City 
Council 
communications 
and develop a 
programme of 
community 
events and 
festivals to 
support the use 
of the Irish 
Language 

Dublin City 
Council 

Libraries  2017 Use of Irish language 
in communications 
Number of 
community events 
held 

Programme 
brochures have Irish 
content and titles in 
Irish.  
Events Citywide for 
Seachtaine na 
Gaeilge.  

Ciorcal Comhrá Gaeilge 
/ Irish Language 
Conversation groups in 
8 branches  

 

 

 

6.3 Enhance participation in arts and cultural activities and events with access for all 

 Action Responsibility 
 

Area 
 

Timeline Measurement Current Status 

Action 163 Implement the 
City Arts Plan 
2014 – 2018  
 

Dublin City 
Council 

Arts Office 2017 Number of actions 
implemented 
 

Special Committee 
with DCHG and Arts 
Council on Artists 
Workspaces.  Sites for 
feasibility now 
identified. 

P
age 47



Action 164 Implement the 
Dublin City 
Council Cultural 
Strategy 2015 - 
2021 
 

Dublin City 
Council 
 
 

Arts Office 2017 Creative Industries 
Conference held 
 
 
Arts in Education 
Policy adopted and 
working and 
stakeholder groups 
established 

Arts in Education 
Conference planned 
for 1st quarter 2018. 
 
Policy adopted and 
working.  Stakeholder 
groups established. 

Action 165 Develop the 
Dublin Culture 
Connects 
programme 
including: 
Neighbourhoods 
and National Arts 
and Cultural 
Institutions (The 
National 
Neighbourhood) 
Cultural Audit 
and Mapping 
Fundraising 
fellowships 
EU funding 
applications. 

Dublin City 
Council 

Arts Office 2017 Projects delivered 
 
 
 
 
Audit and mapping 
completed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fellows appointed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The National 
Neighbourhood: 
450 events delivered 
with 110 community 
groups. 
Tender for 
implementation of 
cultural audit and 
map. Tenders 
received and 
currently being 
assessed. 
 
4 Fellows appointed. 
Now also mentoring 
community groups in 
fundraising. 
 
 
 
 

P
age 48



EU funding 
applications 
developed and 
submitted 

4 EU funding 
applications 
developed and 
submitted. 
Erasmus+ application 
successful. 

Action 166 Increase access 
and provision for 
children and 
young people to 
quality arts 
experiences in 
local 
neighbourhoods 

Dublin City 
Council 

Arts Office 
 
 

2017 
 

Number of children’s 
arts events, artists in 
residence and 
professional 
development 
opportunities for 
Children’s Arts 
Development 

6 new projects in NEIC 
area, New Early Years 
Project in Darndale, 
Joint Commission 
with other Dublin 
Local Authorities. 

Action 167 Promote culture 
and arts through 
a Parks Events 
programme in 
the City 

Dublin City 
Council  

Parks & Landscape 2017 Programme of events 
delivered  
Number of events 
Number of 
participants at events 

392 events held in 
parks during 2017 
including festivals, 
sports, charity and 
community events. 

Action 169 Actively promote 
the engagement 
of people of all 
cultures in the 
visual arts 
through 
targeted, 
accessible 
programmes and 
workshops in the 
Hugh Lane 

Dublin City 
Council 

Hugh Lane Gallery 2017 Number of 
programmes and 
workshops 
Number of 
participants 

916 programmed 
education events 
were delivered, and 
18,500 people of all 
ages participated. 

P
age 49



Gallery 

Action 170 Support a broad 
range of artistic 
and  
cultural activities 
in libraries, 
sheltered 
housing and 
community 
venues  

Dublin City 
Council 
 

Libraries 2017  Number of activities 
supported 
 

Spring and Autumn 
Programmes , 
Heritage Week, 
Creative Writing 
Groups, National 
Neighbourhood 
Projects, Science 
Week 

 

6.4 Promote the Decade of Commemorations in the City 

 Action Responsibility 
(DCC 
Department and 
Section Name) 

Area 
(Citywide or Name 
of DCC Admin Area 
/ SICAP Lot / Other 
catchment area) 
 

Timeline Measurement Current Status 

Action 174 Continue to host 
Dublin City 
Council Decade of 
Commemorations  
 

Dublin City 
Council 

Libraries 2017-2022 Number of 
programmed events, 
consultations and 
publications in 2017 
including: 
6 Historians in 
Residence  
Commence an annual  
Living History Day  
Provide a number of 

6 Historians in 
Residence employed 
since April 2017 
History Family Day, 
Richmond Barracks -
641 attendees. 
Exhibitions- Dublin 
Remembers: stories 
from the Somme, 
Jacob’s  Biscuit 

P
age 50



agreed Exhibitions 
Digitisation and on-
line publication of 
Dublin City historic 
photographic 
collections complete 

Factory exhibition, 
Swift and Dublin 
exhibition. 
Digitisation Ongoing  

 

Goal 7: Identify and support the growth sectors such as tourism, technology, food chain, education, retail and green business 

that will create, sustain and grow quality employment and self-employment opportunities for all. 

7.1 Identify and support growth sectors 

 Action Responsibility Area Timeline Measurement Current Status 

Action 177 Provide a “Start 
and Grow your 
Own Business” 
programme and 
a Career 
Direction 
Development 
programme 

Dublin City 
Council 

Libraries 2017 Programmes 
delivered 
Number of 
participants 

Both Programmes 
delivered-statistics 
not available until 
Jan. 2018 

 

P
age 51



Goal 8: Promote access to a range of education, training and developmental opportunities starting in early childhood, leading 

to a culture of lifelong learning and an appropriately qualified and skilled workforce. 

8.1 Promote and support quality early childhood and education supports for children, including supporting parents, early years 

practitioners and teachers to help children achieve their full potential 

 Action Responsibility Area catchment 
area) 

Timeline Measurement Current Status 

Action 204 Progress 
children’s 
reading skills 
through a 
number of 
targeted literacy 
programmes 

Dublin City 
Council 

Libraries 
 
 

2017 
 

Number of literacy 
programmes held 

DEIS Schools literacy 
programme- 16 
events, 558 
participants.  
3 readers in residence 
visited 70 groups with 
1,400 children 
Citywide Reading 
Campaign 
Summer Stars 
Reading Campaign 
(59 events, 1,423 
participants  
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 52



8.4 Provide targeted training and educational opportunities to match current and future skills needs 

 Action Responsibility Area Timeline Measurement Current Status 

Action 229 Provide digital 
skills training 
opportunities for 
older people 

Dublin City 
Council 

Libraries  2017 Number of digital 
skills training 
opportunities 
provided 

Getting Citizens 
Online – 20 sessions  
Smartphone Training 
-16 sessions  
Internet Training : 10 
sessions  
 
 

Action 231 Provide 
employability 
skills through 
Microsoft Office 
Specialist and 
Microsoft 
Academy IT 

Dublin City 
Council 

Libraries 2017 Number of courses 
provided 
 
Number of 
participants 

Microsoft Office 
Specialist and 
Microsoft Academy IT 
provided.  Stats not 
yet available. 
 

 

 

 

 

P
age 53



Goal 10: Support the continued development of a quality, affordable and accessible movement system within the City 

prioritising walking, cycling and quality public transport which serves both the needs of local neighbourhoods and the economy of the City and 

the health and well-being of all. 

 

10.2 Promote walking and cycling facilities and initiatives to create healthy neighbourhoods 

 Action Responsibility Area 
 

Timeline Measurement Current Status 

Action 258 Review parks 
byelaws with 
regard to 
cycling and 
implement 
signage to 
define 
Greenways 

Dublin City 
Council 

Parks & Landscape 2017 Number of Byelaws 
amended and new 
signage approved 

No progress made on 
this action in 2017.  
To be relisted for 
2018. 

 

 

 

P
age 54



Goal 12: Enhance the recognition of Dublin as a globally connected city region and as the national economic generator. 

12.1 Build mutually beneficial economic and other links with key cities globally, while also continuing to bid for, and host, leading 

international events and festivals 

 Action Responsibility 
(DCC Department 
and Section 
Name) 

Area 
 

Timeline Measurement Current Status 

Action 285 Develop and 
implement a 
five year Events 
Strategy for the 
City 
 

Dublin City 
Council 

Events Unit 2017 Strategy in place  
 
 
 
 
 
Number of events 
held 

New funding scheme 
to be trialled in 2018 
in advance of 
development of 
Strategy 
 
90 events held and 
supported. 

Action 286 Collaborate 
with Fáilte 
Ireland to 
support and 
attract major 
international 
events and 
festivals which 
position Dublin 
as a key festival 

Dublin City 
Council 

Events Unit 2017 Strategic aims and 
actions agreed with 
Fáilte Ireland  

Strong partnership 
maintained with 
Fáilte Ireland and 
joint actions being 
pursued. 

P
age 55



city 
 

Action 288 Review funding 
and other 
available 
supports to 
ensure that a 
diverse range of 
groups and 
event 
organisers are 
supported 

Dublin City 
Council 

Events Unit 2017 Number of events 
supported 
 

90 events held and 
supported. 

Action 289 Develop a set of 
protocols and 
guidelines 
which support 
and encourage 
investment in 
filming in the 
city, while 
protecting the 
rights and 
quality of life of 
residents 
 
 
 
 

Dublin City 
Council 

Events Unit 2017 Protocols in place and 
being adhered to. 
 
 
Number of film 
shoots supported 

Protocols in place and 
being used by film 
industry 
 
51 film shoots 
supported 

P
age 56



Action 290 Promote Dublin 
through the 
UNESCO Dublin 
Bay Biosphere 
designation and 
its links through 
the world 
network of 
Biosphere 
Reserves 

Dublin City 
Council 

Parks & Landscape 2017 Number of activities 
and events to 
promote networking 
and the green 
credentials of Dublin 
internationally 

All activities listed on 
the 2017 schedule of 
events for 
Biodiversity have 
taken place. 

Action 291 Promote Dublin 
as UNESCO City 
of Literature 
showcasing 
literary 
attractions such 
as One City, 
One Book; 
Words on the 
Street; and 
Bram Stoker 
Festival 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dublin City 
Council 
Fáilte Ireland 

Libraries 2017 Number of literary 
events promoted 

All Achieved 
  

P
age 57



Action 292 Promote Dublin 
UNESCO City of 
Literature by 
liaising with 
other members 
of the UNESCO 
Creative Cities 
Network 
(UCCN) 

Dublin City 
Council 
 

Libraries 2017 Number of 
partnerships with 
other Cities of 
Literature and UCCN 
members 
Number of 
promotions through 
the Embassy Network 

Dublin Director took 
position of UCCN 
Deputy 
Representative of 
Literature Sub –
network  
10 new Cities-Dublin 
Director evaluated 
submitted applicants  

Action 293 Continue the 
international 
reach and 
influence of 
Dublin through 
the 
International 
Dublin Literary 
Award 

Dublin City 
Council 

Libraries 2017 Award maintained 
and delivered 

2017 Award Achieved  
2018 longlist 
published  

Action 294 Promote the 
Dublin Festival 
of History to 
maintain 
connections 
with the 
Diaspora, 
international 
authors, 
tourists and 
Irish Citizens 
 

Dublin City 
Council 

Libraries 2017 Number of events 
held 
Number attending 
events 

152 events. 7700 
Attendances  

P
age 58



 

Action 295 Support 
business, state 
agencies, third 
level 
institutions and 
other key 
stakeholders to 
raise Dublin’s 
international 
profile. 

Dublin City 
Council 

International 
Relations 

2017 Alliance established 
and number of 
actions developed 

Regular meetings 
held with Dublin 
chamber, British Irish 
Chamber, Dept. 
Foreign Affairs, 
Ambassadors, third 
level institutions etc. 
International 
Relations Framework 
document nearly 
complete. Actions will 
arise from 
Framework. 

 

P
age 59





 

Creative Ireland Dublin City 05/01/18 1 

 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 
 

22nd January 2018 
 

Item No. 8 
 

 
CREATIVE IRELAND DUBLIN CITY PROGRAMME 

End of Year Report 2017 

Executive Summary 

The Creative Ireland Programme 2017 – 2022 is a five year, all-of-government, initiative 
which places creativity at the centre of public policy. The programme is based on five pillars: 

1. Enabling the creative potential of every child 
2. Enabling creativity in every community 
3. Investing in our creative and cultural infrastructure 
4. Ireland as a centre of excellence in media production 
5. Unifying our global reputation 

 
Local authorities are leading local programme delivery in the context of citizen engagement, 
the second pillar of the five pillar programme. Each local authority has convened a culture 
team to deliver this objective. The Creative Dublin City team is a cross-departmental team 
bringing together relevant personnel from across Dublin City Council, led by Margaret 
Hayes, City Librarian. Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian, is Co-ordinator, continuing in 
the role he played in the Ireland 2016 programme.  

The Creative Ireland programme 2017 showcased a new national festival on 17th April, 
Cruinniú na Cásca, which celebrated contemporary Irish arts and culture across the country. 
Dublin City Council hosted events on the day at Dublin Castle (Dublin City Public Libraries), 
the LAB Gallery and Dublin City Gallery The Hugh Lane. Dublin City Council Events 
organised the dressing of the City with large building banners at five prime locations; 
Smithfield, Civic Offices, Dame Street, City Quay and Temple Bar. The City was also 
dressed with over 200 specially designed lamp post banners. Overall attendance for 
Cruinniú was estimated to be 550,000.  

Each local authority was asked to develop a Culture and Creativity Plan for 2017, reflecting 
the overall structure and aims of the national strategy for culture and creativity. The 
development of these plans was a cornerstone of pillar 2 of the Creative Ireland Programme, 
encouraging communities and citizens to engage, participate and enable their creative 
potential. Consultation workshops were facilitated by Dublin City Council and the Creative 
Ireland national team during the year to share ideas, develop collaborations and explore 
opportunities for increased investment in local arts, culture and creative industries.  

An Taoiseach Enda Kenny TD, and the Minister for Arts, Heritage, Regional, Rural and 
Gaeltacht Affairs, Heather Humphreys TD, launched the thirty-one Local Authority Culture 
and Creativity Plans for 2017 at Dublin Castle on 25th May. A budget of €64,516 was 
allocated to each local authority from the Department of Culture, Heritage and the Gaeltacht 
and the Department of Housing, Planning and Local Government for the implementation of 
their Plan in 2017.  Dublin City Creative Ireland funding was used to facilitate collaborative 
projects between Dublin City Council and external partners in 2017.  

Page 61

https://creative.ireland.ie/en/local-plans/dublin-city


 

Creative Ireland Dublin City 05/01/18 2 

The four projects in which collaboration was deepened as a direct result of the Creative 
Ireland programme were: 

 Dublin Tenement Museum at Henrietta Street - Tenement memories and suburban 
experiences at the Tenement Museum Dublin, a social history (pilot) project. Partners 
in the project with the Tenement Museum Dublin project team were Donal Fallon 
(Dublin City Library and Archives ‘Historians in Residence’ programme), local 
community groups and historical societies in Finglas, Ballymun and Cabra and the 
National Folklore Foundation. 

 History and archaeology of the medieval royal Abbey of St. Thomas the Martyr 
(1177) in The Liberties. This was a joint project by the South Central Area Office and 
DCC Archaeology section in collaboration with external project partners The 
Discovery Programme: Centre for Research and Innovation (Monastic Ireland), 
Dublinia & the Medieval Trust, Professor Howard Clarke, Cathy Scufil DCC Historian 
in Residence, Warrenmount History, Local Schools, Pearse Lyons Distillery and IAC 
Ltd.  

 Commissioning of two Dublin City Writers-in-Residence, providing an opportunity for 
two creative writers to develop their work and to work collaboratively with other 
cultural programmes in the city such as the Reader and Historian initiatives. Project 
partners are the  Irish Writers’ Centre and Dublin UNESCO City of Literature, 

 Early Years Arts Partnership, a collaboration between Dublin City Arts Office, 
Preparing for Life (a Northside Partnership Project) and the North Central Area 
Office. 

Following on from the publication of the Dublin City Culture and Creativity Plan 2017, Dublin 
City Creative Ireland team has developed strategic priorities for the next five years to inform 
a Culture and Creativity Strategy 2018 - 2022 for Dublin City. 

Feedback from consultation workshops, as well as priorities from existing culture-related 
strategies and policies of Dublin City Council has informed priorities for this strategy. The 
Dublin City Creative Ireland team has identified six strategic priorities focusing on 
engagement, enjoyment and empowerment: 

 Engage everyone - we will work collaboratively to maximise opportunities for 
everyone to participate in the city’s creative and cultural life. 

 Enhance our space - we will work to enhance local cultural and creative infrastructure 
to offer active use of public space in Dublin city. 

 Enjoy and explore - we will invite children to explore, enjoy, create and play in their 
city. 

 Experience and expectation - we will honour our past and focus on our future. 

 Energise and evolve - we will develop internal and external partnerships to increase 
cultural participation. 

 Empower creators to excel - we will support artists and other creators. 

The strategic priorities will be brought to the Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC before 
submission to the full City Council in 2018. 

Click here to view full document 
 
Margaret Hayes, Dublin City Librarian 
 

                                             

Page 62

https://dublincity.sharefile.eu/d-s62add2f4ae74c69b


 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 
 

22nd January 2018 
 

Item No. 11 
 

 
MANAGEMENT UPDATE REPORT 

EVENTS SECTION 
 

 
 
 22nd NOVEMBER 
 

  
 
Dublin’s Run in the Dark was held on Wednesday 22nd November and raised funds for the 
ongoing research of the Mark Pollock Trust, to find a cure for paralysis.  
 
Dublin is one of the 40 cities around the world where these annual runs take place. Both the 
5km and 10km races were open to joggers, walkers and runners of all fitness levels and the  
course took in the Quays, the Docklands, Ringsend and Irishtown stadium. 
 
26th NOVEMBER 

 
Smithfield Lights 2017” was the main family Christmas event in Dublin and up to 20,000 
people came out to enjoy the festive entertainment.  

Page 63



Families enjoyed a wide range of children’s festive activities, including face painting, 
workshops, a vintage carousel and an outdoor screening of the classic Christmas movie, 
The Snowman. The food and craft stalls proved popular again this year.  
 
There was a stellar line up of music, appealing to all ages, including the Stanhope Street 
Girls Choir, Red Empire and headline act the Riptide Movement. 
 
09th DECEMBER 
 

 
 
Glow at Smithfield is a free family event which took place on Saturday 9th December. It 
consisted of a line up of family activities, such as family performances, comedy, music and 
indoor and outdoor workshops, all programmed by Grasshopper Events.  
In addition to a “Glow Stage”, families were also entertained in a “Glow Tent”.  The Library 
Bus proved to be very popular, while indoor workshops, provided by Brown Bag Film studios 
and the Light House Cinema, were also very much in demand. 
The estimated audience attendance on the day was in excess of 3,000.  
 
21st December  
   

  

 
Smashing Times Theatre and Film Company and Slí an Chroí, in partnership with Dublin 
City Council and Dublin Institute of Technology, presented City of Dublin Winter Solstice 
Celebration Festival on 21st December in Smithfield Square. 
 
Participants of all ages were invited to take part in this magical parade, which honoured the 
Winter Solstice, which marks the shortest day of the year and is celebrated worldwide, 
across a range of cultures. This free family festival was a colourful gathering of local 
communities, with national and international visitors, bringing together traditional storytelling, 
poetry and craft making with the processional parade culminating in a collective fire 
ceremony. 
 
 
 

Page 64



 
 
 

31st DECEMBER – 1st JANUARY 

 
 

 
 

 

Over 40,000 people attended New Year's Festival Dublin 2017.  The 
festival took place over 2 days with 4 spectacular events at Custom 
House Quay. For the first time ever, NYF Dublin created two 
spectacular Midnight Moment events to countdown to 2018.  
Revellers watched the dazzling lighting displays in amazement as 
acrobats took to the sky and the River Liffey to perform aerial and 
aquatic stunts. These free spectacles were performed against the 
backdrop of the iconic Custom House. NYF Dublin also saw revellers 
ring in 2018 at the 3Countdown Concert with Kodaline, Hudson Taylor 
and Keywest. 
Over one million people from around the world watched as Dublin’s 
spectacular countdown celebrations were broadcast on an 
international stage ensuring the beauty of the City was showcased in 
all its glory.  Footage of the celebrations has since been broadcast by 
CNN and viewed over 1.5 million through various social media 
platforms. 
The festival also welcomed thousands of families and visitors, who 
kick started 2018 with a fun-filled day of entertainment at the free New 
Year’s Day Celebration. The Garda Band, Hit Machine 
Drummers and the Line Up Choir wowed crowds from the stage as 
aerial and aquatic acrobats also took to the streets, the sky and the 
River Liffey.  
NYF Dublin, a partnership between Dublin City Council and Fáilte 
Ireland, aims to position Dublin as a key international New Year’s 
destination.  The success of the festival this year, and the world wide 
media coverage that was achieved, has established a solid foundation 
for this goal. 

 

Page 65



FILMING UPDATE  
 
A number of large productions have recently been shooting in the City.  These have included 
tourism productions for French, German and American audiences, high profile TV shows, 
such as “the X-Factor” and “Who Do You Think You Are?” and a number of commercials for 
such brands as Samsung, Jameson and Guinness. 
 

 
 
The Rhythm Section 
 
The Rhythm Section is the first film adaptation of Mark Burnell’s four-part series of novels 
and recently shot a number of important scenes in the City.The film stars Blake Lively, 
whose character is on a path to self-destruction following the death of her family in an 
airplane crash.  The film is directed by “The Handmaid's Tale” director and executive 
producer Reed Morano. The film is produced by James Bond producers Michael G. Wilson 
and Barbara Broccoli, and is viewed as a probable blockbuster franchise. 

 
 

Contact: Alison King, Administrative Officer 
Email: ailson.king@dublincity.ie 
Tel:  2223145 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 66

mailto:ailson.king@dublincity.ie


SOCIAL INCLUSION UNIT 
 
Comhairle na nÓg 
An tArdmhéara opened the 2017 Comhairle na nÓg AGM in Croke Park on 27th October.  
130 young people attended and selected as their working topic for 2018, Mental Health.  
They held their first meeting on 11th December, the aim of which was to get to know one 
another and hear a presentation from Jigsaw who support young people in the area of 
mental health.  Representatives of Dublin City Comhairle an nÓg also attended the annual 
Dáil na nÓg in Croke Park on 6th December. 
 

 
 
 
Equality, Access & Social Inclusion Seminar 
Members of the Social Inclusion Unit attended 2 seminars on Implementing the Public 
Sector Equality & Human Rights Duty given by the Irish Human Rights and Equality 
Commission.  The purpose of the seminars was to assist public bodies in understanding 
their statutory obligation to implement their Public Sector Duty under Section 42 of the Irish 
Human Rights and Equality Commission Act 2014. 
 

 
 
 
IWISH 
We will be supporting the IWISH conference in the RDS on the 29th and 30th of January.    
IWISH is an initiative to encourage young women to pursue careers in STEM (Science, 
Technology, Engineering & Maths).  It is expected that over 5,000 students will attend. 
 

Page 67



Dublin City Intercultural Language Service 
This is the second year of the Dublin City Intercultural Language Service in the Sports 
Centre in Ballybough.  The September to December 2017 term saw 80 learners recruited 
and tested; an average of 25 learners presenting on any given day; 30 nationalities; a 
volunteer pool of 35 with 25 active in the Centre; operating 5 days a week; a new weekly 
Intercultural Storytelling encounter; a new weekly intercultural drama course; a new Absolute 
Beginner class.   Overall there has been an increase in both volunteer and student numbers.   
The Centre serves mainly the Dublin 1,3,5 and 9 areas.  A second centre will open in 
January in St. Catherine’s Community Centre, Marrowbone Lane, Dublin 8.  The Ballybough 
Centre was shortlisted for a Chambers Ireland award and three members of the Centre 
attended the awards dinner in the company of Cllr. Deirdre Heney.  They were unsuccessful 
on this occasion. 
 

 
 
Intercultural Cities 
The Social Inclusion Unit sent a representative to the Intercultural Cities Conference in 
November; an event which marked the 10th anniversary of the network of 121 cities 
committed to making diversity a strength through inclusive integration policies. 
 
The Local Enterprise Office is represented in the Intercultural Cities Diversity Connectors 
Pilot Project, which aims to support such under-represented groups such as migrant 
entrepreneurs.  The outcome from the project will be best practice case studies of how 
European cities are helping under-represented groups start and grow businesses.  We will 
be collaborating with the LEO in organising an event around diversity and assisting under 
represented groups, including migrants, in starting/growing businesses as part of Local 
Enterprise Week in March 2018. 
 
Also informing our work in conjunction with Intercultural Cities will be expanded policies on 
participatory democracy, active urban citizenship, human rights and non-discrimination, 
LGBTi rights, anti-rumours, and inclusive integration. These issues are all recognised as 
useful mechanisms to counter inflammatory rhetoric and populism while promoting cohesion 
trust in public institutions, welfare and wellbeing. 
 

 
 
Contact: Mary Foley, Senior Executive Officer 
Email:  mary.foley@dublincity.ie 
Tel:  2225317 

Page 68

mailto:mary.foley@dublincity.ie


PARKS AND LANDSCAPES SERVICES 

2017 was a very busy year for the Parks & Landscape Services.  Here is a look back at 
some of the work carried out during the year. 

Tea Rooms in the Parks 
Over the past number of years we have opened new Tea Rooms in some of our City Parks 
and these are a great addition to the Parks in which they are located and have been warmly 
welcomed by the public.  In some cases these were new projects which included a complete 
new build, for example in Harolds Cross Park where a new state of the art facility was built.  
Current locations include: 

 The Tram Café at Wolfe Tone Park 

 Blossom Tree Café at St. Patrick’s Park (reopened in July under new management) 

 Lolly & Cook Café at Herbert Park 

 Noshington’s at Harolds Cross Park 

 Olive’s room at St. Anne’s Park ( The Red Stables ) 

Another addition was the ‘Happy Café’ at Dollymount Strand on the Bull Island. 

 
The ‘Happy Café’ on Dollymount Strand at the Bull Island 
 

There are proposals to install additional new tea rooms in Bushy Park, Fairview Park and 
Merrion Square Park.  However, these projects are at a very early stage and further 
information will be forthcoming as the projects progress during the year. 

Markets: 

We currently facilitate the operation of three markets in City Parks as follows: 

 Merrion Square (lunchtime on Thursdays) 

 Herbert Park (Sunday market) 

 St. Anne’s Park (Saturday market) 

 

Page 69



Capital Programme (works completed during 2017) 

Weaver Park 
A brand new Public Park was built on the site of the former Chamber Court and Weaver’s 
Court flat complex, at the junction of Cork Street and Ormond Street.  Construction 
commenced on this new neighbourhood amenity in January 2017, as part of the Liberties 
Greening Strategy, and is the first purpose built park in Dublin 8 for over 100 years.   
 

 

The Park was officially opened by the Lord Mayor Michael MacDonncha on Monday 2
nd

 October 2017 

St. Anne’s Park All-Weather Pitch 

Official opening by the Lord Mayor Brendan Carr on the 6th June 2017 

 

Page 70



Greendale, Kilbarrack All-Weather Pitch  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Officially opened on the 6th June 2017  

 

Brickfields All-Weather Pitch   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Officially opened by the Lord Mayor Brendan Carr on the 24th April 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 71



Springdale Road Pavilion, Edenmore 

 

 

Officially opened by the Lord Mayor Mícheál Mac Donncha on the 20
th
 July 2017 

Page 72



Bushy Park Pavilion 

Dorman Architects were commissioned to produce proposals for the dilapidated tennis 
pavilion in Bushy Park, which was over 40 years old and in need of a complete upgrade. 

 

The newly refurbished tennis pavilion is now a bright inviting place and a fantastic addition to 
this much loved neighbourhood park. The refurbishment and upgrade of the tennis pavilion 
included alterations to the existing layout to provide a fully accessible sports pavilion with all 
the necessary amenities.  A new, attractive veranda has been created at the rear of building. 
The green credential of the building is reflected in the high A3 Building Energy Rating (BER) 
achieved.  

The upgrade works also include the provision of four Padel courts, the first of their kind for 
an Irish local authority, and they have proved immensely popular. Other improvements to the 
facilities include re-surfacing nine tennis courts, three of which are artificial clay courts, the 
provision of floodlights and two half basketball courts. The Padel Federation of Ireland now 
operate the facility to a high standard actively promoting tennis and Padel together at a 
reasonable membership fee including pay and play. 

         
Photos show the official opening of the new sports 
facilities in Bushy Park, Tenenure by Árdmheara 
Bhaile Átha Cliath, Mícheál Mac Donncha on 
Thursday 9

th
 November, 2017. 

 
 
 
 
Tolka Valley Pavilion 

Page 73



 
Due to be officially opened in early 2018 

 
UNESCO Dublin Bay Discovery Centre 
 
Works to progress the UNESCO Dublin Bay Discovery Centre project have been initiated 
with the procurement of some minor facilitation works, including the appointment of structural 
engineers to advise on ground work investigations (which will be undertaken in 2018), and 
the appointment of environmental consultants to undertake a screening appraisal of the 
proposal both in terms of Appropriate Assessment and Environmental Impact Assessment 
(EIA). 
Consultation with stakeholders has also been initiated with a round of meetings with DCC, 
NGOs, Elected Representatives, and local stakeholder groups now underway and set to 
continue over the coming weeks. A brief for detailed design for the Discovery Centre will be 
issued for tender in Q1 2018, followed by the appointment of a design team. 
 

 
Parks Events 

A total of 404 events  took place in Parks around the City during 2017 with the details broken 
down as follows: 
 

Event Type No. of Events Event Type No. of 
Events 

Arts & Culture 10 Filming 74 

Charity 26 Music 4 

Commercial 52 Photo Shoot 70 

Community & Family 89 Sports 53 

Festivals 10 Wedding Photo 16 

    

Page 74



 

 
Staff in Parks Administration work in collaboration with the event co-ordinators to ensure 
each event complies with the protocol set out by the Parks & Landscape services for running 
events in City Parks.  
 
Golf / Pitch & Putt / Tennis Courses 
We currently have 3 Pitch & Putt courses and 2 Golf Clubs in the City which are maintained 
by City Council Parks staff.  These courses are very well attended during the times they are 
open and are valued by the communities that they serve.  The following outlines the number 
of customers through the doors during 2017. 
 

Name of Course Location Attendance in 2017 

Pitch & Putt Edenmore Park 759 ( to end Oct 2017 ) 

Pitch & Putt ( Sundays only) Lansdowne Valley 155 ( Jan – August ) 

Pitch & Putt Tolka Valley 4,865 ( Jan – Oct ) 

Golf St. Anne’s Park 5,985 ( Jan – Oct ) 

Tennis St. Anne’s Park 873 ( Jan – Oct ) 

Golf Silloge Park 23,511 ( Jan – Oct ) 

 
 
Current Projects: 
Bridgefoot Street (New Public Park) 
 A new public park at Bridgefoot Street will consist of hard and soft landscaped areas, tree 
planting, furniture and lighting; soft landscape mounds and landscape terraces.  The space 
will also include Allotments and a community garden, along with a multi-functional 
performance area and play space with play equipment.  

 

 

 

 

Page 75



Wolfe Tone Park Greening and Redevelopment: 
Wolfe Tone Park was originally a cemetery first developed in the early 1700’s.  It was 
converted to a Public Park towards the end of the 1880’s.  There are approximately 160 
headstones currently in the space some of which remain stacked against the boundary wall 
on the southern end and some lying recumbent in the ground along the western flank.  As 
part of the redevelopment, a proper solution for the safeguarding and presentation of the 
headstones is being developed.  
 
Le Fanu Skate Park, Ballyfermot: 
This will be the largest skate park in Europe when it is complete  
 

 
 
St. Anne’s Park (The Follies) 
We have 12 Follies in St. Anne’s Park in various states of disrepair, all of which are currently 
undergoing conservation works as part of our renovation programme.  The programme 
includes removing graffiti, re-pointing with specialist lime pointing and generally attempting to 
attest further decay. 
 

Page 76



 
Restoration work on one of the 12 follies ( Annie lee ) 
 
 

 
Annie Lee – restored to its former glory 
 
 

 

 

Page 77



Other Parks events during 2017 

The Rose Festival  
This weekend event took place over the weekend of the 15th & 16th July 2017 and was the 
best Rose Festival to date.  This festival has grown over the years and is a wonderful ‘free’ 
experience for all the family.  The festival includes a mix of music, dance, market stalls, 
educational tents, an animal farm as well as plants, garden ornaments, furniture etc.. The 
festival is managed entirely by staff in Parks & Landscape Services.  

 
 

      
 
 

 
 

Page 78



 
Horse and Carriage rides through St. Anne’s Park – at the Rose Festival 

 
  The beautiful Roses, carefully maintained by Parks staff 

           
 
 
Green Flag Awards 
We were successful this year in retaining all 5 of our Green Flag Awards for the following 
Parks:  Bushy Park, The Basin at Blessington Street, St. Anne’s Park, Poppintree Park and 
Markievicz Park.  This is a fantastic award to achieve as the standard set is very high. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 79



Bloom 2017 

 
Dublin City Council’s Silver Gilt Award winning garden, designed by Dara O’Daly, which 
promoted the Parks & Landscape Services work in ‘Greening the City’.   
 
Biodiversity Unit 

 
It was a very busy season for Biodiversity, with many activities taking place, 
particularly around Dollymount Strand and The North Bull Island to coincide 
with the  presence of large Winter Wading Birds and the annual assessment of 
the environmental status of the coastal shore using the Coastwatch Survey.  
 

 
Annual Coastwatch Survey 
During September and October, staff from the Sports Centres and students from The 
National Botanic Gardens were instructed in conducting the Annual Coastwatch survey 
along the length of Dollymount Stand and on the Alfie Byrne Road. The status of the shore  
was assessed for litter, pollution, coastal erosion and biodiversity. One of the surveys 
occurred the day before ex hurricane Ophelia and the other occurred the day after Storm 
Brian so the results were interesting and you will be glad to hear that Dublin Bay was left 
intact. The participants have committed to doing the survey at these locations again and 
have offered to provide biodiversity interpretation to schools and the public on an ongoing 
basis as part of work and training.   
 

 
Coastwatch Survey the day before Ophelia - Students  with  Staff of National Botanic Gardens of Ireland and the day 
after Storm Brian with staff of East Point Water Sports Centre  

Page 80



The Brent Geese Project 
 
During November and December schoolchildren and members of the public were recruited 
as Brent Goose Ambassadors to ensure that flocks of Brent feeding on our parks and open 
spaces will not be disturbed during their critical feeding periods. Over 250 school children 
and members of their community experienced outdoor classrooms with Parks staff. 
BirdWatch Ireland and local bait fishermen delivering illustrated talks and expert instruction 
on winter wading birds, Brent Geese and Marine Biodiversity.  
 
Many schools participated in these events from all over the City. The 6th Class from Scoil 
Mhuire, Sandymount were supported to enter a project in the Eco UNESCO young 
Environmentalists award on raising awareness about the Brent Geese through storytelling 
and they have initiated contact with the Umimmak School in Grise Fjjord in the Canadian 
High Arctic.   
 
Pupils from Belmayne Educate Together received awards from the Lord Mayor for their work 
on the spring Brent Goose Ambassador 2017 programme.  On the day, the Lord Mayor 
offered letters of introduction to the Canadian Ambassador for the project.  

 

  

 

 
 

 
     

Photos  show pupils from St. Laurence O’Toole School, Belmayne Educate Together and St. Louise GNS, 
Ballyfermot participating in the UN Brent Goose Ambassador Project 

 
On November 11th over 100 people attended a Brent Geese Open Day at North Bull Island 
with guided viewing of feeding Brent Geese, illustrated talks and interactive displays on the 
Life story of the Brent Geese.  Attending on the day were members of the community 
including representatives from the local Kitesurfing community, Local Tidy Towns, ‘I love St 
Annes’, Eco UNESCO and local scouting organisations. Over 20 people signed up to 
become ambassadors. The ring readings taken during the expert observations by BirdWatch 
Ireland will be used to scientifically monitor the migration of the geese.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



 

 
Members of the Dunshaughlin scouts group taking ring readings of the Brent Geese  
 

 
Members of the Kitesurfing Community and the public at the North Bull Island Open  Day 

 
Local Community Biodiversity Hubs 
Following assessment, the East Wall Water Sports Centre and Ballyfermot Library are to 
become local community hubs for interpreting the City’s Biodiversity. These locations will 
become centres where members of the public can avail of guided walks, talks and an 
interpretation of the city’s wildlife and how to protect it using citizen science. This new 
initiative will develop active collaboration between the UNESCO City of Literature and The 
UNESCO Dublin Bay Biosphere.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  Staff at East Point Watersports Centre             Staff at Ballyfermot Library 

 
 
Contact: Leslie Moore, City Parks Superintendent 
  Leslie.moore@dublincity.ie 
Tel:  2225049 
  Caroline Maher, Administrative Officer, 
  Caroline.maher@dublincity.ie 
Tel:  2222348 

Page 82

mailto:Leslie.moore@dublincity.ie
mailto:Caroline.maher@dublincity.ie


DUBLIN CITY PUBLIC LIBRARIES AND ARCHIVE  
 

 

 
 
 
New City Library & Parnell Square Cultural Quarter     
The design team have remobilised with the aim of submitting a planning application by mid 
2018.   
 
Commemorations  

A new exhibition “Suffragist City: Women and the Vote in Dublin” has opened in Dublin City 
Library and Archive (running until the end of February) marking the 100th anniversary of the 
Representation of the People Act which awarded women the vote for the first time.  

 

The 1910s was a decade of great social and political turbulence. The 
cause of suffragism added to the tumult as women asserted their 
political rights. Suffragists in Ireland endured ridicule, assault, and 
imprisonment in their quest for social justice but 1918 was their year 
of victory. Later on in December 1918, the voters of Dublin elected 
Constance Markievicz the first woman to win a seat at Westminster 
(which she declined to take). This exhibition tells their story. 
Dates: 2nd January to 28th February 2018. 
Location: Dublin City Library & Archive, 10am to 8pm (Mon-Thurs), 
10am to 5pm (Fri/Sat). 
Admission Free.  
 

 
 
To accompany the exhibition, a free seminar “New Voices in Women’s History” will take 
place in Dublin City Library and Archive on 17th February and will showcase the latest 
research by early career scholars into women’s history in Ireland with topics ranging from 
nineteenth-century boarding schools for girls to women and material culture in eighteenth-
century Dublin.  

Page 83



Commemorations – Historians-in-Residence 

 
The Historians in Residence “History on Your Doorstep” project will be launched across the 
city in mid-February with a series of information panels with text and images telling local 
history stories. A new local history group has been set up in the Coolock/Artane area by 
North Central Historian in Residence Cormac Moore. Forty people attended its inaugural 
lecture/meeting and the group is called “Coolock, Artane and District Historical Society”.  
 

 

The group is planning a new oral history project with people 
who moved from the city to Coolock in the 1950s/60s and this 
work will be facilitated by Cormac Moore and Dublin City 
Library and Archive, which will provide training on oral history 
best practice.   
 
 

 
The Historians in Residence can be contacted at commemorations@dublincity.ie, or follow 
them on Twitter @DubHistorians, and they have planned a new social media strategy from 
January. 
 
The Historians in Residence will meet local history groups on 1st February at a reception in 
City Hall to celebrate local communities’ engagement with history. The “History in Dublin’s 
Communities – a Celebration” event will be attended by the Lord Mayor and will highlight 
DCC’s work under the Decade of Commemorations designation with a particular focus on 
local groups’ engagement with history in their areas. Each group will be awarded with 
certificates by the Lord Mayor to celebrate their role in highlighting and promoting history. 
 
The Decade of Commemorations Fund for Communities will continue into 2018 with €75,000 
available for allocation to community-based groups, community organisations and 
partnerships in Dublin who want to organise dignified and appropriate commemorative 
events within the Decade of Commemorations designation.  Workshops will be arranged in 
each of the five DCC areas in the spring to highlight the grants scheme.  
 
 
Creative Ireland  
See attached report of the Dublin City Creative Ireland team 2017, including an Executive 
Summary (Item No. 8 on Agenda). 
 
Creative Ireland/UNESCO City of Literature – 
Writers in Residence - Declan Burke and Elizabeth Reapy are working with library-based 
writing groups around the city, as well as doing public readings and working on their own 
new writing. Activities include free master classes in dialogue, readings for the public in Irish 
Writers Centre and sessions for writing groups in exploring approaches to poetry writing.  
 
Readers in Residence - The programme will continue during 2018. The Readers will 
recommence class visits to 17 schools and clubs at the start of the new school term in 
January. A final year report for Jan to Dec 2017 will be completed by mid January, which will 
include final figures for class visits, numbers of children involved, library visits plus special 
event attendance.  
 

Page 84

mailto:commemorations@dublincity.ie


 

To mark Swift 350, four schools involved in 
the Reader in Residence programme sent 
pupils to the Lemuel Gulliver event in 
Charleville Mall Library. Approximately 120 
children enjoyed this event, which was 
presented by author Dave Rudden and 
musician Jerry Fish.  
 

 
 
 
Dublin North East Inner City Project 
CoderDojo programme Saturday sessions are recommencing in January. 
 
Public Library Strategy 2018-2022 
Submissions are being sought in respect of the 
Government's new Public Library Strategy 2018-2022. 
The new Strategy will underpin the continued 
development of the public library system over the next 
five years and position the public library at the centre 
of the community, meeting the information, learning 
and cultural needs of individuals and communities. 
The new Strategy is being developed by the 
Department of Rural and Community Development, 
the Local Government Management Agency and 
Local Authorities. More details here:  
http://www.dublincity.ie/story/strategy-public-libraries-
public-consultation 
 

 

As part of the preparation of a new Dublin City Library Development Plan 2018 -2022 a 
number of public consultation opportunities will be facilitated during March. Members input 
and engagement will be sought.  More details to follow. 
 
New Library App  
A new, free library App was launched at the end of 2017. The app, for Android and iOS 
devices, allows library customers to search the library catalogue, manage the library 
account; reserve and renew items, find events, download books, comics, magazines and 
much more. http://www.dublincity.ie/story/new-library-mobile-app 

 
Projects - Update   

Project Progress/Current Status Next Stage 

Kevin Street Library – 
Refurbishment 

Planning of the furniture/fit-out is 
underway. 

Completion of 
works/handover and fixtures 
& fittings. 

Library Digital Projects: 
PC Reservation 

Libraries are expanding the range 
of self service options for library 
users with the extension of the 
public PC reservation self booking 
system (funded by The 
Department of Rural and 
Community Development).  
Computer and Internet self-

A web module to allow 
remote booking of PCs will 
be rolled out in Q1.  Roll out 
to the remaining 9 branch 
libraries will commence later 
this year. 

Page 85

http://www.dublincity.ie/story/strategy-public-libraries-public-consultation
http://www.dublincity.ie/story/strategy-public-libraries-public-consultation
http://www.dublincity.ie/story/new-library-mobile-app


booking facilities were extended 
to a further seven Dublin City 
branch libraries, Ballymun, 
Coolock, Donaghmede, Finglas, 
Pearse Street, Pembroke, and 
Raheny. This brings to eleven the 
number of branch libraries with 
self-booking facilities, the Central 
Library, Ballyfermot, Rathmines 
and Cabra Libraries already 
having such facilities. 
 

Creative Ireland Project continuing – see report 
above.  

See Item No. 8 on Agenda.     

Proposed New City 
Library, Parnell Square 

The project is continuing to be 
developed and, following 
completion of the scheme design, 
the architects have remobilised to 
submit for planning in mid 2018 

Planning application to be 
developed. 

Dublin North East Inner 
City Project - CoderDojo 
programme 

Project continuing – see report 
above.     

See report above. 

Dublin North East Inner 
City Project – Readers-
in-Residence 
programme 

Project continuing – see report 
above.     

See report above.     

Commemorations 
programme 2017 – 
Historians-in-Residence 

Project continuing – see report 
above.     

See report above.     

Terenure Library  During the recent budgeting 
process DCC made capital 
funding available to undertake a 
detailed study of the options for 
Terenure Library. A tender for a 
consultant architect was issued at 
the end of October to undertake a 
feasibility study to assess the 
options for development of 
Terenure Library, including: 
refurbishment, new build on the 
existing site, new build as a joint 
development in collaboration with 
the Enterprise Centre., As the 
quotations received in response 
to the initial request for tender 
were higher than anticipated, 
further quotations were sought to 
ensure best value for money.  A 
tender  has now been awarded 
(12th Jan)  with an anticipated 3 
month work plan. 

A full feasibility report, 
including estimated costs, 
planning constraints etc will 
be completed by early next 
year. Further up-dates will 
issue as they become 
available. 
 

 
 
 

Page 86



Programming  
There are lots of events taking place in libraries & archives from January to March.  
Copies of the printed Spring Brochure will be sent to councillors and will be available to the 
public at branch libraries and Council offices, and to download from the council website by 
the end of January 2018 
 
All events are also included in our events calendar on the Council website at http://bit.ly/dcpl-
events. 
 
 
Dates for your Diary (selected) 
Citywide Reading Campaign 
 

 

Making Millions by Erika McGann, published by O’Brien, will be 
the centrepiece of the 2018 Citywide Reading Campaign for 
Children, to be launched on January 17th. The aim of the 
campaign is to encourage primary school children to read for 
pleasure. The initiative is run by Dublin UNESCO City of 
Literature and Dublin City Council Public Libraries, in partnership 
with the publisher, and will run from January to March 2018 with 
library reading events for schools and other organisations.  

The 21st Annual Sir John T. Gilbert Commemorative Lecture:  24th January 2018, 6pm 
Dublin City Library & Archive, 138-144 Pearse Street 
 
Live from the Conniving House: Poetry and Music in 
Eighteenth-Century Dublin by Dr Michael Griffin 

The Conniving House tavern, long since forgotten, opened 
in 1725 and is the cultural and geographical starting point 
for this lecture on the lively interaction of poetic and 
musical cultures in eighteenth-century Dublin. This lecture 
explores a fascinating moment in the history of Dublin’s 
poetical and musical cultures, one which yields several 
compelling instances of cross-cultural connivance. 
Dr Michael Griffin is Senior Lecturer in English at the 
University of Limerick. 

 

The Joint Irish Society for Archives/Irish Theatre Archive Seminar commemorating the 
90th Anniversary of the Gate Theatre will take place at Dublin City Library and Archive on 
13th February from 6pm to 8pm. The range of speakers will focus mainly on the 
MacLiammóir  & Edwards era and on archival collections. A panel discussion will follow.  

 

Acclaimed author Joanna Trollope will talk about her career in writing 
and her new book An Unsuitable Match on Thurs 15th February in the 
Royal Irish Academy, in association with Dublin UNESCO City of 
Literature. 

 
 
 
 

Page 87

http://bit.ly/dcpl-events
http://bit.ly/dcpl-events


Dublin One City One Book  
 

 

The Long Gaze Back, An Anthology of Irish Women 
Writers edited by Sinéad Gleeson and published by New 
Island Books, was announced as the Dublin One City One 
Book in 2017.  The programme will be launched on March 7th 
2018. The book’s living authors have been contacted and 
almost all are available to take part in the festival next April, as 
are many cultural institutions and other library authorities, that 
wish to contribute to the programme. 
 
 

 

 

The Healthy Ireland at Your Library Programme will see over 
40 events running from late January to the end of March. This 
is a national library programme which will focus on physical 
health, mental health & wellbeing and health literacy. The 
programme includes a focus on books, e-resources, journals 
and events.  
 

 
 
A violin tuition programme for the public will commence at Central Library, Donaghmede and 
Rathmines libraries.This programme is an introductory series of classes for 12 participants at 
each library. Other music projects will be announced during the year.  
 
 
As part of Bliain na Gaeilge – 125 years commemoration 
of the revival of the Irish language a number of events will 
be planned throughout the year, with cultural events at 
Dublin City Library & Archive for spring and autumn 
celebrating Irish language and culture. Seachtain na 
Gaeilge programme will also take place at branch 
libraries. 
 

 

 

 

During February, engineers in the city 
council will promote the work of engineers to 
schools  at library locations.  

 
 

 
Contact: Margaret Hayes, Dublin City Librarian 
Email:  Margaret.hayes@dublincity.ie 
Tel:  01 6744800 
  Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian 
  Brendan.teeling@dublincity.ie 
  01 6744800 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 88

mailto:Margaret.hayes@dublincity.ie
mailto:Brendan.teeling@dublincity.ie


RECREATION CENTRES  
 
Christmas was a busy time across the Recreation Centres with programmes held in the 12 
Centres, from days out to Santa visits and parties for Senior Citizens and children. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sample of some of the events held: 
 

 Kilmore West Recreation Centre 

 A Philippino Community Christmas party with food and  music celebrating 
their culture was held. This was the third year the event was facilitated and 
approx 120 people attended the celebration. 

 St. Laurance O`Toole Recreation Centre 

 A  Christmas dinner was held in the centre in partnership with the After 
Schools Project and children and teachers from the local boys and girls 
school attended. 350 local children and Senior Citizens took part. 

 A Santa Winter Wonderland Grotto was built and over 120 children from the 
local crèche and families attended to meet Santa.   

 Darndale Recreation Centre 

 Facilitated and supported a Christmas play on the 20th with over 400 people 
in attendance. 

 We were delighted to host a Christmas party for Adults & Children Living in 
Emergency Accommodation. 130 adults and 300 children were in attendance. 
The party included a Santa’s Grotto, Bouncy Castles and a visit from Dave’s 
Jungle. 

 Hardwick Street, Blackhall, Georges Place and Hardwick Street Recreation 
Centres 

 Christmas parties for approx 90 Senior Citizens with Christmas dinner and 
entertainment. 

 Children’s parties  

  
 

Page 89



 Ventry Recreation Centre 

 Santa arrived by bus with presents, hot chocolate, music and spot prizes for 
over 50 children  and light refreshments for parents and guardians. 

 Bluebell Youth and Community Centre 

 Christmas Community Fair 

 Senior Citizens Christmas night 
 
Common Ground Project 
This project concentrated on environmental sustainability involving children in the Sheriff 
Street area and in particular with the involvement of the St. Laurence O`Toole Senior Boys 
School and children in the City of Orlando including a seed exchange and video conference. 
This was a very successful programme and to continue with the pillars of sustainability and 
environmental awareness, a new programme has been introduced, the Light Bellied Brent 
Goose Ambassador Project 2017. This project is in partnership with Dublin City Council’s 
Biodiversity Officer and, as part of The Dublin City Biodiversity Action Plan 2015 – 2020, 
promotes education, awareness and responsible recreational behaviours in parks, pitches 
open spaces including North Bull Island, Irishtown Nature Reserve and Sandymount Strand.  
 
What it means to be a Brent Goose Ambassador 
The Brent Goose Ambassador Project is designed to raise awareness of the geese and to 
recognise and promote the UNESCO Dublin Bay Biosphere as an integral part of their city. 
Ambassadors visit North Bull Island or another part of the Biosphere to see and identify the 
geese as they graze on the mudflats, marshes and open spaces. 
The children, teachers and recreation staff went to visit the North Bull Island part of the 
Biosphere to see and identify the local fauna and the geese as they grazed on the mudflats, 
marshes and open spaces.  

 
Health and Safety 
Almost all staff in the Recreation Centres have been trained in Occupational First Aid. The 
small number of remaining staff will have their training completed by the 2nd week in 
February. This training includes the use of defibrillators. Currently only a small number of 
Recreation Centres have defibrillators on site. It is the intention of the management of the 
Recreation Service to have defibrillators available in all Recreation Centres by the end of 
March 2018.  
 
 
Energy Management Programme 
The Energy Management Programme is continuing with the Bluebell Youth and Community 
Centre partnering with Energy Solutions. The centre has been visited and an energy audit 
has begun. As older energy use systems reach end of life, they will be replaced with higher 
efficiency units. Upgrading of insulation in the older building will continue as the need is 
identified to assist with thermal efficiency and lower heating costs. Where possible and when 
available, grants will be applied to financially assist in the upgrades. 

Page 90



General Improvement Programme 

Three more buildings; Ventry, Dominic Street and the Pearse Area Recreation Centre were 
selected for general improvement including painting both internally and externally. This is to 
continue, in order to provide programmes in well maintained and welcoming facilities. This 
programme will continue throughout 2018 
 
Halloween (in brief) 
All 12 Recreation Centres had Halloween Programmes for Halloween itself and for the mid 
term school break. 
Some highlights from the Sheriff Street Parade and the East Wall Community Parade: The 
Recreation Service is delighted to continue working with each of the centres, local 
communities in these and similar positive event. It is estimated that over 1600 people 
watched and took part in the East Wall Parade and then went through the truly scary 
haunted house.  Over 120 people marched in the Sheriff Street Parade and took part in the 
“Big Scream Halloween Festival”. The St. Laurence O`Toole Recreation Centre 
management and staff have been part of this very successful festival and have worked on 
and with  the organising committee for the last 2 years. 
 

 
 

 
Contact: Trevor Higgins, Recreation Centres Manager 
  Trevor.higgins@dublincity.ie 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 91

mailto:Trevor.higgins@dublincity.ie


SPORT AND RECREATION 
 
Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership (DCSWP) 
 
GAGA – Getting All Girls Active 
GAGA is an initiative devised by the Partnership in 2017 to Get More Girls Active.  The 
initiative is run in conjunction with local youth services, clubs and schools. There are 2 
strands to GAGA, which was rolled out across the City from October to December 2017. 
Firstly, 6-week sport and physical activity programmes targeting teenage girls were delivered 
in local communalities by our team of Sport Officers. A wide variety of activities was 
delivered as part of the programme including fencing, boxing, fun games, rugby, basketball 
and biking.  

Secondly, GAGA Day was held on Wednesday the 13th of December.  A social media 
campaign was run in the lead up to the day to build interest.  A dance-fit class was streamed 
live on Facebook on the day and all schools, clubs and youth groups were encouraged to 
get involved and to share a picture or a short video of their class/group getting active and 
‘going GAGA’ As an incentive, prizes were on offer for the best video sent in by a 
school/youth group in addition to individual spot prizes.   

 
The buzz around the campaign was fantastic with schools, groups and individuals sharing a 
wide range of activities from ice skating, boxing, dance, fencing and many more. Many high 
profile sports stars, such as Katie Taylor, the Irish Womens Rugby Team, the Irish Ladies 
Soccer Team and leading sports organisations, such as the FAI and parkrun, were sharing 
and liking the page.  This led to #GAGA trending on Twitter across the country.   
 
Low levels of physical activity and high dropout rates from sports by teenage girls are well 
documented.  #GAGA aimed to address this by showing the positive impact sport can have.  
This is the first time we have delivered GAGA.  The project will be evaluated and developed 
further in 2018.   

 
 
 
 

Page 92



Thrive & Forever Fit 
Thrive and Forever Fit programmes, targeting people with mental health difficulties and older 
adults respectively, use multiple sport and physical activities in venues around the city to 
engage and increase participation rates amongst these target populations.  These are key 
target groups for the Sport Officer team due to Ireland’s aging population and an increased 
awareness of mental health issues and the importance of physical activity for both.   
 
Lord Mayor 5 Alive Challenge 
Four hundred participants registered for the Lord Mayor’s 5 Alive Challenge, 2018.  The first 
race - the Liffey Valley Tom Brennan Memorial 5k in the Phoenix Park – took place at 12 
noon on New Year’s Day.  There was a great turn out despite the cold weather.  The 
introduction of Mentors to encourage participants proved a great success.  The next 4 races 
are as follow: 

 3pm Sunday 28th January 2018 – AXA Raheny 5 Mile in Raheny 

 11am Saturday 3rd February 2018 – Garda Cross Country / BHAA 2 mile & 4 mile 

races, Phoenix Park  

 12pm Sunday 18th March 2018 – Metro St. Brigid’s St. Patrick’s 5k, City Centre  

 11am Saturday 7th April 2018 – Dublin City Council / BHAA 10k race in St. Anne’s 

Park in Raheny  

(Participants can substitute one parkrun completed between 1st January and 7th April for one 
of the races)   
 

 
 
Boxing Showcase 
 
The Startbox Initiative, a partnership between the IABA and Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing 
Partnership, represents an ideal way for young people (10 – 17 years) to first engage with 
amateur boxing, Ireland’s most successful Olympic sport. It is delivered by our 5 dedicated 
IABA/DCSWP Development Officers via local schools (primary & TY level) in communities 
across the Dublin City area. Approx. 2,000 young people take part each year. 
 
The Programme is structured into Bronze (non contact), Silver and Gold phases. The first 
two phases focus on general strength & fitness, method and technique. 
 
The Gold Sessions are exclusively for students who have shown a talent and enthusiasm for 
the sport throughout the Bronze & Silver phases. They have the chance to train at the High 
Performance Gym in the National Stadium and then go on to take part in the Showcase 
Finals in early December.  
 

Page 93



The 2017 Showcase Finals took place in the National Stadium, South Circular Road, on 
December 4th – December 7th and were a great success. 
The showcase exhibitions represent thirteen weeks of hard work by participants who have 
been engaging with their local Development Officer. In fact, the Development Team has 
recently been recognised by Chambers Ireland, where they have been shortlisted at the 
Excellence in Local Government Awards in the category of ‘Supporting Active Communities’. 

Vast numbers of young school children, both boys and girls, continue to participate in 
Startbox and it is clear to see that this boxing initiative is proving to be very popular with both 
kids and schools alike. 

 

 

 

Cricket 
 
Our annual Dublin City U12, U14 & U17 Christmas and New Year Camps took  place on the 
27th & 28th of December and the 3rd & 4th of January in North County Cricket Club from 
10am to 4.30pm.  Participants from across the city attended. 
 
Soccer Late Night Leagues 
 
The Late Night Leagues is a diversion programme that has been successfully running for 
many years now. The initiative is a partnership between the Football Association of Ireland, 
An Garda Síochána & Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership. The programme is 
deliberately scheduled for Friday nights so as to limit the risk of the young people involved 
engaging in anti-social behaviour at this time.  
 
It is delivered by the FAI/DCSWP Development Officers, often with assistance from our own 
DCSWP Sport Officers. The programmes generally run for anything from 6 to 8 weeks in 
various locations across the city, Culminating in the Finals Night, which this year took place 
on Friday, 8th December in Irishtown Stadium. 
 
 

Page 94



Some of the young people involved display a real talent for the game and have gone on to 
join some of the major Dublin clubs on the back of their performances in the finals. 
 

 
 
Operation Transformation / Get Dublin Walking 
 
Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership  hosted 3 open walks on Saturday the 13th of 
January as part of the National Walk Day in association with RTE’s Operation 
Transformation.  Each walk commenced at 11am and was approximately 5 kilometres.  We  
targetted people who are currently engaged in below recommended levels of physical 
activity.  Walking is an ideal activity for all those wishing to kick start a more active lifestyle - 
It is a safe and accessible activity that can be done with family and friends.  A brisk walk can 
provide a huge range both of physical and mental health benefits.   Walk Locations were 

 War Memorial Gardens, Dublin 8  

 Tolka Valley Park, Dublin  

 Raheny GAA Club, Dublin 5  

Local walking programmes will be developed and delivered around the City in 2018.  
 
Change for Life 
 
Change for Life is an 8 week programme targeting inactive adults that runs from January to 
March each year.  The programme aims to tackle the issues of sedentary behaviour and 
increasing obesity levels through a partnership approach thereby helping to build healthier 
communities.  The programme coincides with the RTE programme Operation 
Transformation to take advantage of motivation for a healthier lifestyle at the beginning of 
the year.  DCSWP successfully applied for Healthy Ireland funding to expand and enhance 
the programme in 2018.  Participant recruitment commenced in December 2017.   
Change for Life will be rolled out in the following venues:  

 F2 Centre, Fatima, Dublin 8 

 Bluebell Community Centre, Dublin 12  

 Poppintree Community Sports Centre, Dublin 9  

 Darndale/Belcamp Sport & Leisure Centre, Dublin 17 

 Irishtown Stadium, Dublin 4 

 Aughrim St Sports Hall, Dublin 7 

 Larkin Community College, Dublin 1  

 Clogher Road Community Sports Centre, Dublin 12 

 Harolds Cross National School, Dublin 6W 

 

 

Page 95



SPORT AND WELLBEING PARTNERSHIP PROGRAMMES JANUARY TO OCTOBER 2017 

  No. of Programmes Attendance New Attendees 
(counted once) 

Sport Officers 648 74,331 34,740 

FAI 187 40,896 12,687 

IRFU 157 23,992 12,107 

IABA 249 16,902 6,271 

Cricket 103 20,154 7,310 

Rowing 277 18,780 6,968 

HSE 27 3,433 1,067 

 

Contact: Antonia Martin 
Programmes & Services Development Manager, Dublin City Sport & 
Wellbeing Partnership 
Antonia.martin@dublincity.ie 

Tel:   01 2227870 
 
 
 

Sports Capital Programme 2017 
 
Dublin City Council’s Sports Section applied for funding for a number of projects under the 
Department of Transport, Tourism and Sport’s 2017 Sports Capital Programme. In total the 
City Council was provisionally awarded approximately €843,000 in funding to complete these 
projects. The monies will be used for a variety of new sports equipment and the 
redevelopment of existing sports facilities. Furthermore, Dublin City Council applied in 
tandem with a variety of other sporting clubs to help them avail of the Sports Capital 
Programme. Such entities as Tennis Ireland and Cherry Orchard Equine Centre received 
funding on the basis of joint applications with the City Council’s Sports Section.   
   
TOTAL USERS OF THE SPORT AND FITNESS FACILITIES 
 

FACILITY 2017 

CABRA PARKSIDE 96,577 

AUGHRIM ST. SPORTS HALL 20,749 

GLIN RD. SPORT HALL 23,223 

POPPINTREE SPORTS CENTRE 55,736 

BALLYFERMOT LEISURE CENTRE 182,000 

INCHICORE SPORTS HALL 26,507 

ST. CATHERINES SPORTS COMPLEX 70,129 

CLOGHER ROAD SPORTS HALL 17,044 

BALLYMUN LEISURE CENTRE 258,955 

FINGLAS LEISURE CENTRE 260,000 

MARKIEVICZ LEISURE CENTRE 185,575 

IRISHTOWN STADIUM 154,083 

BALLYBOUGH COMMUNITY CENTRE 70,000 

CLONTARF RD SPORTS ALL WEATHER PITCHES 120,000 

ISLANDBRIDGE ROWING CENTRE 5682  

SEAN MCDERMOTT ST. POOL 18,931 

CRUMLIN POOL 20,890 

COOLOCK POOL  24,158 

Page 96

mailto:Antonia.martin@dublincity.ie


   BALLYMUN SPORT & FITNESS CENTRE 

Overall Attendance 258,955 

Children’s Swimming Lesson Visits 8,200 

Passport for Leisure Pay As You Go 2360 

OAP Visits 6,150 

 
FINGLAS SPORTS & FITNESS CENTRE 

Overall Attendance 260,000 

Children’s Swimming Lessons Visits 8,550 

Passport for Leisure Pay As You Go 2682 

OAP Visits 7,250 

 
BALLYFERMOTT SPORT AND FITNESS CENTRE     

Overall Attendance 182,000 

Children’s Swimming Lessons Visits 3147 

Passport for Leisure Pay As You Go 2029 

OAP Visits 25,717 

 
MARKIEVICZ SPORTS AND FITNESS CENTRE    

Overall Attendance 189475 

Children’s Swimming Lessons Visits 4229 

Passport for Leisure Pay As You Go 13,546 

OAP Visits 12,356 

 
IRISHTOWN SPORT AND FITNESS  

Overall Attendance 153,625 

Children Athletics Running Track Visits 19945 

Passport for Leisure Pay As You Go 2384 

OAP Visits 1537 

 
SWAN SPORT AND FITNESS CENTRE 

Overall Attendance 436,919 

Children’s Swimming Lessons Visits 62,525 

Passport for Leisure Pay As You Go 3,654 

OAP Visits 39,898 

 
 
Contact: Emma Byrne 

Administrative Officer 
Sports Administration 
emma.byrne@dublincity.ie  

Tel.   01 222 3365 

 

 
 
 

 

 

Page 97

mailto:emma.byrne@dublincity.ie


DUBLIN CITY GALLERY THE HUGH LANE 

 

Visitor Numbers 

The Gallery received 180,171 visitors in 2017. 

Strategic Plan 2018-2022 

The November meeting of this SPC recommended Report 406/2017 “Dublin City Gallery The 
Hugh Lane – Draft Five Year Strategy – 2018-2022”, to Council for approval.  The December 
City Council meeting approved this plan and it will now form the basis of all gallery 
operations for the next five years.   

Hugh Lane Refurbishment Project 

Shaffrey Associates Architects has been appointed design team for this project. Preliminary 
design has commenced and stakeholder workshops will be scheduled shortly.  A more 
definitive date for commencement of works will be available on completion of the preliminary 
design phase (current estimate is late 2018). The 1930’s wing will close on commencement 
of works for approximately one year. 

Education 

Special Lecture in association with GRADcam: Prof Gert Biesta 

 

A keynote address ‘Letting Art Teach’ by Gert Biesta is 

taking place at the Hugh Lane on 6th February in 

collaboration with the 10th anniversary celebrations of 

The Graduate School of Creative Arts and Media, DIT 

GradCam.   

 

Gert Biesta is one of the most important theorists 

working in art educational discourse today. In his 

book Letting Art Teach: Art Education After Joseph 

Beuys (2017), Biesta argues against the reduction of art 

and education to the instrumental logics of the market 

that currently dominate educational discourse and 

policy.  

 

 

 

 

Prof Biesta instead believes that the teaching of art education enables students to have a 
unique dialogue with the world. In addition to Prof Biesta's lecture there will be contributions 
by Dr Noel Fitzpatrick (DIT), Dr Glenn Loughran (DIT), Dr Brian Hand (NCAD), Dr Brian Fay 
(DIT) and Dr Tina Kinsella (IADT). The discussion will be chaired by Dr. Sharon Todd 
(Maynooth University). Tickets for this free lecture are available from 
www.eventbrite.ie  
 

 

Page 98

http://www.eventbrite.ie/


New: Film Screenings Programme 

A new series of diverse and interesting art films is being screened as part of our upcoming 
spring education programme. Screenings will be accompanied by an introduction and follow 
-up discussion. Among the films being shown as part of this series are: The Seasons in 
Quincy: Four Portraits of John Berger (2016, Dirs. Tilda Swinton, Colin MacCabe, Bartek 
Dziadosz, Christopher Roth); Museum Hours (2013, Dir. Jem Cohen); Monuments (2010, 
Dir. Redmond Entwistle); Dad’s Stick (2012, Dir. John Smith); and Automotive Action 
Painting (2006, Dir. George Barber).  
 

Spring programme of talks, art courses and family workshops 

A full and engaging programme of art talks, coffee conversations, artist led drawing and 
printmaking classes as well as family art workshops, early years  art workshops and mid-
term break courses is taking place at the Hugh Lane this Spring. As well as the highlights 
already mentioned, a new printmaking course on the theme of ‘Land and Sea’ is taking place 
led by artist Elaine Leader; a study day is taking place in tandem with the exhibition Keeper 
by Amanda Dunsmore and will include presentations by Dr Colin Graham, Dr Cillian 
McGrattan and Fiona Barber. Senator George Mitchell has accepted an invitation to speak 
on The Good Friday Agreement: A Personal Reflection prior to the opening of Amanda 
Dunsmore’s exhibition.  Special talks, art workshops and film screenings are taking place as 
part of the Chinese New Year Festival, The Russian Festival of Culture; the City Wide 
Reading Campaign, International Women’s Day and One City One Book; the Bealtaine 
Festival and National Drawing Day.  
 
Citywide Reading Campaign 
Saturday 10 February, 3-4pm  

The Hugh Lane has invited author Erika McGann, who will read from her book Making 
Millions followed by a Q&A. Erika will be accompanied by illustrator Vince Reid, who will 
discuss the illustrations he made for Erika’s book as well as leading a practical 
demonstration on what it takes to make a great illustration.  
 
New programme: A Mindful Exercise in Art Observation  

Once a month on Saturdays at 11am, artist Ashleigh Downey will lead a mindful exercise in 
art observation looking at selected works of art from the collection through guided mindful 
observation. During each hour long session participants will be encouraged to articulate their 
responses to this ‘slow looking’ verbally or may consider writing or drawing. 
 
Basic Talks series  

Basic Talks is a series of informal talks with contemporary practitioners, taking place at 
Dublin City Gallery The Hugh Lane on the second Friday of every month. Curated by Basic 
Space in partnership with The Hugh Lane’s education programme, BASIC TALKS is an open 
platform for talks, panels, lectures and performances. Through this programme the Gallery 
continues to support Irish and international art practice. Speakers include artists, curators, 
writers and critics who generate discourse on producing and exhibiting art. The talks to date 
have introduced new audiences to the Gallery and have been well attended. The 
experimental nature of the series offers a platform for the testing of ideas and the sharing of 
experiences  related to art making and curation by emerging practitioners. The following 
Basic Talks are taking place in January and February:  Friday 12 January, 1pm: Ruth Clinton 
and Niamh Moriarty will discuss their practice;   Friday 9 February, 1pm Ann Maria Healy will 
speak, Healy is a visual artist whose practice is concerned with recurrence, mimesis, the 
power of history and narratives deeply embedded within the human psyche. 
 
 

Page 99

https://www.google.ie/search?q=Tilda+Swinton&stick=H4sIAAAAAAAAAOPgE-LVT9c3NEyqKjGxzKiIV-LUz9U3MEozSsnTEstOttJPy8zJBRNWKZlFqckl-UUAM0BxzDQAAAA&sa=X&ved=0ahUKEwil4LP5vNTXAhUrBsAKHW1VCFgQmxMIkgEoATAS
https://www.google.ie/search?q=Colin+MacCabe&stick=H4sIAAAAAAAAAOPgE-LVT9c3NEyqKjGxzKiIV-LSz9U3MDIzLios1xLLTrbST8vMyQUTVimZRanJJflFAHTkPE01AAAA&sa=X&ved=0ahUKEwil4LP5vNTXAhUrBsAKHW1VCFgQmxMIkwEoAjAS
https://www.google.ie/search?q=Bartek+Dziadosz&stick=H4sIAAAAAAAAAOPgE-LVT9c3NEyqKjGxzKiIV4JzLSwLzU20xLKTrfTTMnNywYRVSmZRanJJfhEAW-BuWDgAAAA&sa=X&ved=0ahUKEwil4LP5vNTXAhUrBsAKHW1VCFgQmxMIlAEoAzAS
https://www.google.ie/search?q=Bartek+Dziadosz&stick=H4sIAAAAAAAAAOPgE-LVT9c3NEyqKjGxzKiIV4JzLSwLzU20xLKTrfTTMnNywYRVSmZRanJJfhEAW-BuWDgAAAA&sa=X&ved=0ahUKEwil4LP5vNTXAhUrBsAKHW1VCFgQmxMIlAEoAzAS
https://www.google.ie/search?q=Christopher+Roth&stick=H4sIAAAAAAAAAOPgE-LVT9c3NEyqKjGxzKiIV-LSz9U3yDOsTEsx0RLLTrbST8vMyQUTVimZRanJJflFALpmF6s1AAAA&sa=X&ved=0ahUKEwil4LP5vNTXAhUrBsAKHW1VCFgQmxMIlQEoBDAS


Hugh Lane Collaboration with the Foundations Project  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

After school artist-led project organised by the Hugh Lane Education programme for children 
participating in the Foundations Project are continuing in Spring 2018.  These workshops are 
aimed at 5-7 year olds and 7-10 year olds and take place in the Gallery’s education space 
on Wednesday and Thursday afternoons. A publication documentating the project to date is 
currently in progress. The Foundations Project is a CDETB and HSE initiative for people 
using homeless services.  The Hugh Lane’s project is funded by Dublin City Council’s NEIC 
Programme Office.  
 
‘Walk with Light’ Exhibition: Visitors’ Responses 

‘Walk with Light’ was a Hugh Lane Gallery education project in collaboration with St 
Laurence O’Toole Recreation Centre, Sheriff Street. An exhibition of the children’s artwork 
made during artist-led workshops at the Hugh Lane and Sheriff St. Recreation Centre has 
been on view at the Hugh Lane since September. A visitors’ survey is being undertaken in 
conjunction with the display and the reaction to the project and the children’s work has been 
very positive. To date 74% of visitors said they would like to see more exhibitions of 
children’s work in the Gallery. Some of the visitors’ comments include:  ‘Loved this!! More 
galleries should do this – you are inspiring the youth’; ‘So interesting to see how museums 
work so hard in this type of educational programming’; ‘It was so joyful!’; ‘Delighted to see; 
we should have more involvement of kids in art esp the north inner city’. 
 

Hill Street New Communities 

In December 2017 a special combined tour and art workshop for children and their families 
from the Asian community living in the north inner city took place at the Hugh Lane in 
association with Hill Street Family Resource Centre. The visit was enjoyed by all and it is 
hoped that this first visit will be the beginning of lifelong engagement between this group, 
their wider community and the gallery.   
 
First Friday Culture Club  

The Hugh Lane’s First Friday Culture Club continues this spring with special talks on the 
collection and temporary exhibitions programme followed by a moderated discussion and tea 
and coffee.  This programme is in collaboration with Dublin’s Culture Connects.  
 

  

 
 

Page 100



Coffee Conversations taking place each Wednesday in January and February  

10 January/11am After Image by Michael Warren with Liliane Puthod 

17 January/11am Portrait of WB Yeats by John Butler Yeats with Anne Cormican 

31 January/11am An insight into Collaborative Arts practice with artist Seamus Nolan. 

7 February/ 11am October Morning by William Stott of Oldham with Geraldine Canavan 

14 February/11am Portrait of Sarah Purser by Mary Swanzy with Barbara O’Connell. 

21 February/ 11am An Artist’s Perspective: Liliane Puthod will discuss the theme of journey  

28 February/11am Portrait of John Butler Yeats by Walt Kuhn with Jessica Fahy. 

 

Chinese New Year 2018: Year of the Dog  

Sunday 18 February, 2pm. Film Screening:  There’s a Strong Wind in Beijing (1999, Dir. Ju 
Anqi). Duration: 48 mins.  
Saturday 24 February, 2-4pm.  Explore patterns with artist Barbara O’Connell and create 
your own stamp to design motifs inspired by Chinese prints. Drop in free family workshop. 
No booking required although numbers may be limited.  
 

Festival of Russian Culture  

Sunday 11 February, 2pm Film Screening: The Battleship Potemkin (1925, Dir. Sergei 
Eisenstein). 
Saturday 17 February, 2pm-3pm Balala! Join us to create your own balalaika made out of 
everyday material in this art workshop for 6-10 year olds led by artist Jane Fogarty. (A 
balalaika is a type of musical instrument with a three-sided body and three strings, played 
especially in Russia) 
Sunday 18 February, 3pm  
Public Tour of the Collection accompanied by Russian translation.  
 

New Programme: Early Years workshops for 1-3 year olds 

Tuesdays 27 February – 20 March, 11am-Noon Ecological artist Ashleigh Downey will lead a 
sensory journey of sights, sounds, smells and textures from nature’s garden for 1-3 year olds 
and their parents in this new four week course.  Through nature based art activities and 
storytelling, a creative connection with nature will be encouraged.  
 

Sunday Sketching for 6+ year olds 3-4pm.  

During these free sketching workshops for families we invite you to explore and respond 
together to our collection and temporary exhibitions through discussion and drawing. Further 
details are available on www.hughlane.ie  
 

Mid-term art workshops 

Tuesday 13 February-Friday 16 February, 10.30am-12pm: What’s the matter? Have fun 
sculpting, assembling and carving volumes and forms during this four day sculpture course 
for 8-11 year olds led by artists Kathryn Maguire and Jane Fogarty.  
Tuesday 13 February-Friday 16 February/1pm-3pm:  Around the world. Create your own 
map and explore printmaking as well as animation processes during this four day course for 
12-14 year olds with artist Janine Davidson.  
 
 
 

Page 101

http://www.hughlane.ie/


Lecture Series in collaboration with the ICTU Peoples College: A participant’s 
response 
 
Avenues into Modern and Contemporary Art is a lecture series taking place on Saturdays at 
11am. Curated by the Gallery’s Head of Education, the series has been taking place for 
nearly two decades. A recent article by one of the attendees of the lecture series summed 
up in a very nice way how much these lectures are enjoyed by participants:  
‘…the standard of lectures is excellent…The gallery itself is a most uplifting building to visit 
and especially on a Saturday morning when it has this magic feeling of entering a treasure 
trove of beauty and creativity..If on a given Saturday morning a lecture and the artist or 
genre in focus connects with how you feel or maybe what’s happening in your life, the result 
can be stimulating and sometimes, as I have experienced, inspirational....It’s such a civilised 
and beautiful way to spend a Saturday morning, you just feel that you are part of something 
greater. I think I’d call it culture.’ The full article can be viewed on http://www.hughlane.ie/art-
history-courses.   
 
Exhibitions 

 

Forthcoming  exhibitions: 

Artist Title of Exhibition Dates of Exhibition 

Amanda Dunmore Keeper 10th April-22nd July 2018 

Rachel  Maclean Spite your Face 31st May-16th September 

2018 

Doireann O Malley Prototypes 22nd  June-7th October 2018 

Niamh Mc Cann Protest Song 4th October-13th January 

2018 

Seamus Nolan CAPP June 2018 

 

Amanda Dunsmore: Keeper                              10th April - 22nd July 2018 

 

 
Marking the 20-year anniversary of the Belfast/Good Friday Agreement—a major milestone 
in the evolution of peace in Northern Ireland—Keeper presents artist Amanda Dunsmore’s 
social and political portraits that reflect specific points in history from the late nineteenth 
century to the present day. The artist’s methodology is grounded in her interest in issues of 
social and political change and this body of work stems from her time as artist in residence 
at The Maze and Long Kesh Prison from 1998. 

Page 102

http://www.hughlane.ie/art-history-courses
http://www.hughlane.ie/art-history-courses


The exhibition will be accompanied by a catalogue published by Black Dog Publishing and 
featuring essays by Senator George Mitchell, Amanda Dunsmore, Fionna Barber and Cillian 
McGrattan. 
 

Exhibitions closed: 

Eithne Jordan: Tableau  closed 14th January 2018 

 

THE OCEAN AFTER NATURE – closed 7th January 2018 

Media coverage reported to November meeting of SPC. 

 

Media coverage 

Inside & Out – Brian McAvera Irish Arts Review pp 96-

103 

Autumn 2017 

This week’s art highlights – The Ticket The Irish Times 13 October 2017 

“ in Tableau, Eithne Jordan shows why she 

needs to paint” by Aidan Dunne 

The Irish Times 18 October 2017 

Eithne Jordan interviewed by Seán Rocks Arena – RTÉ Radio 1 17 October 2017 

Logan Sisley interviewed by Hazel Lake Dublin City FM 17 October 2017 

Tableau by Cristín Leach The Sunday Times 12 November 

2017 

Logan Sisley interviewed by Barbara 

Jennings 

Near FM  15 November 

2017 

www.hughlane.ie 
t. @TheHughLane 
f.  Dublin City Gallery The Hugh Lane 
        
Contact: Barbara Dawson, Director 
Tel:   222 5551 

Tara Robertson, Administrative Officer 
Tel:    222 5559 
 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 103

http://www.hughlane.ie/


ARTS OFFICE 
 

The LAB Gallery 
Forthcoming exhibitions opening 18th January.  
 
Silvia Loeffler, Transit Gateway  

For the past year, Silvia Loeffler has been deep 
mapping the changing face of Dublin Port through 
since Medieval Dublin to the present day. At monthly 
seminars in the LAB, Loeffler invited speakers 
including artists, marine archaeologists, historians, 
engineers, landscape historians and other experts in 
their fields to present their research at a series of 
seminars supported by Dublin Port.  
 
Each seminar explored the themes and research 
reflected in Silvia's series of 9 maps commissioned 
by Dublin Port and currently on show at Terminal 1. 

We look forward to welcoming this installation on loan to the LAB Gallery as our first 
exhibition of 2018.   
 
Susanne Wawra, Portale (Portals)  

 
Susanne Wawra (b. 1980) is a German artist based in 
Dublin, Ireland. Working across different media, she 
explores the intersection between personal 
autobiography and historical events. Utilising 
photographs from her own family albums as well as 
archives purchased via the internet, Wawra draws on 
printed matter to interrogate her experience of of growing 
up in East Germany before the fall of the Wall.  
 
 

 
Nickie Hayden, Settling the Past 
 

For this exhibition of new work, Nickie Hayden brings 
together paintings, sculptures and written word.  
Reflecting on personal experiences of pain, abuse, 
bereavement and a lifelong struggle with literacy, Hayden 
recognises the role painting has played in expressing her 
emotions in the past. Through the past year, taking part 
in a programme for Adult Dyslexics, she has found the 
intense experience of working through language has to 
be particularly cathartic.  
 
For this new work, Hayden explores the everyday 

difficulties and historic traumas experienced by people who have been affected by dyslexia 
and the trauma caused by abuses of power. The exhibition itself seeks to create a space of 
calm, a settling space, evoking the peace the artist has found through painting and a feeling 
of empowerment through words.  
 
 

Page 104



EU/Erasmus+ Award ‘Permission to Wonder’ – Supporting Schools to 
Implement the Visual Thinking Strategies method to enhance Learning with 
Visual Arts’  
 
Artform Development Visual Arts in Education  
 
Public Engagement  6 EU Cities; 24 Trainees; 30 schools  
 
Local Partners  Dublin City Arts Office/The LAB Gallery; the National Council for 

Curriculum and Assessment & Dublin City Gallery The Hugh Lane.  
 
European Partners  Dublin City Arts Office /The LAB Gallery, Ireland; Stichting VTS 

Nederland, Netherlands; Finnish Museum of Photography, Finland; 
Muserum – Children’s Museum for Under 7s – Denmark; Crea – 
Spain; The Slovenian Association of Fine Arts Societies – Slovenia  

 
Dublin City Arts Office/The LAB Gallery innovative arts in education visual literacy 
programme ‘Project 20/20’ has begun the implementation of its successful in an application 
to EU Commission/Erasmus+ /Strategic Partnership for School Education.  
 
The project is designed to innovate and develop the components of a methodology for 
educators in European partner countries to learn and use the Visual Thinking Strategies 
(VTS) method to facilitate Learning with Visual Arts in Schools and in Cultural Institutions 
with a remit for arts education.  
 
The awards valued at €244,618.00 and will take place between November 2017-October 
2020 (36 months).  
 
The main components of the project are -  
1) A training of trainers' module to build the capacity in each partner country to train teachers 
and art museum educators in the VTS method.  
2) Research in participating schools to produce process guidelines for integration of the VTS 
method in the school curriculum.  
3) Production of the Visual Arts Image Bank and case studies accessible on a Europe-wide 
portal to serve as teaching and learner aids.  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 105



Building Strategic National & Local Partnership  
 
The Erasmus+ Permission to Wonder Project is building on an ongoing strategic partnership 
initiative between The National Council for Curriculum and Assessment & 
Dublin City Council – The LAB Gallery and Dublin City Gallery, the Hugh Lane.   
 
In November 2017, Dublin City Council and the National Council for Curriculum and 
Assessment continued to work together and test the training pathway for ‘educators’ in 
Visual Thinking Strategies.  These two trainings were building on the positive evaluations 
from trainee educators on the Beginners Practicum in April 2016.   
 
 

 
The training was focused on professional educators from formal education including early 
years settings, primary school classroom teachers; secondary school art and science 
teachers; art educators (freelance museum and gallery educators, including teaching artists), 
and third level educators. 
 
VTS Neighbourhood Schools  
 
Over the past two years, a cohort of 17 teachers in 8 schools based in the Central Area, in 
particular in the North East Inner City, have participated in Visual Thinking Strategies training 
at the LAB. Dublin City Arts Office, through the Neighbourhood Arts Grants, continues to 
support the trained teachers in the VTS Neighbourhood Schools, through funded co-
ordination that supports sharing of practice, building and embedding school ownership of 
arts practice, and stimulating local support for the programme.  School and teacher 
engagement is growing.   

Page 106



 
 
The List of Schools/Principals and teachers participating in the VTS Neighbourhood Schools 
Programme:  
 

1 Claire Halpin  Artist & Coordinator 

2 Deirdre Gartland  
Central Model Senior School (Vice 
Principal)  

3 Brigid Kildee  Central  Model Senior School 

4 Marsha Keating  Central Model Senior School  

5 Evita Coyle  Central Model Senior School  

6 Pat Courtney 
St Vincents Boys National School 
(Principal)  

7 Orla Doyle St Vincents Boys National School   

8 Aedin Clynes St Vincents Boys National School 

9 Niamh McGill  St Vincents Boys National School  

10 Katie Culkin  St Vincents Boys National School  

11 Margaret O'Connor  St Vincents GNS (Principal)  

12 Pamela Wolfe  St Vincents GSN  

13 Bernie Carroll  St Vincents GNS  

14 Louise Gillick  St Louise's Pre-School (Principal)  

15 Bernie  St Louise's Pre-School  

16 Patsy O'Keefe O'Connells National School (Principal)  

17 Sioban O'Keefe O'Connells National School  

18 Eiblin McGarry  St Mary's National School (Principal)  

19 Evita Cyle  St Mary's National School  

20 Maire O'Higgins 
Larkin Community College (Vice 
Principal)  

21 Sioban McKenzie Larkin Community College  

22 Declan Quinn Larkin Community College  

23   
St Mary's Secondary School  
(Principal)  

24 Cathy Kavanagh St Mary's Secondary School  

25 Nadine Cunningham  St Mary's Secondary School  

 
 
The programme includes regular teacher-led visits to the LAB Gallery and Dublin City 
Gallery, the Hugh Lane.  
 
 

Page 107

file:///C:/Users/42254/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Niamh.McGill@hotmail.com


Exploring and Thinking – International Early Childhood Arts Commission  

 
 

Supported by The Arts Council and the four Dublin local authority Arts Offices.   
 
I AM BABA  
A magical show for babies age 0-12 months  
 

Anna Newell is a theatre maker for children and babies.  The work is a gentle 
sensory experience which is shaped by the babies’ responses and connection to the 
actors and their carers.  Dublin City Council Arts Office proudly worked with The 
Area Based Childhood Programme 2013-2017 in Dublin 1, 17 and 10 to host this 
special work.    
 

FamiliBase, Ballyfermot 
Tuesday 17 October at 10am; 11am; 12pm 
 
Darndale Civic Centre 
Wednesday 18 October at 10am; 11am; 12pm 
 
National College of Ireland 
Thursday 19 October at 10am; 11am; 12pm 
 

 

Page 108



Public Art  Report 
 
The commissioning process for the Luke Kelly sculpture has commenced with liaison with 
different departments and sections in Dublin City Council and agreement on the first stage of 
commissioning with the artist which will be the carving of the portrait in foam to be 
transposed into stone.  Meanwhile, work is also ongoing in identifying a range of possible 
locations for the bronze statue of Luke Kelly by John Coll in the Baggot Street / Grafton 
Street area of the city.   
 
The Liam Mellows Working Group chaired by Cllr Áine Clancy has been meeting on a 
regular basis.  The Working Group was established to work with the local community group 
to commission the statue of Liam Mellows in Finglas.  The Working Group, consisting of City 
Councillors, City Officials and Members of the Liam Mellows Community Group has been 
working through issues such as the location, permissions, wording of the plaque, and the 
commissioning of the statue.   
 
The Department of Culture, Heritage and the Gaeltacht in partnership with Dublin City 
Council is working to commission a national monument dedicated to the role of women 
leading to the foundation of the state.  A number of possible locations have been identified 
for the Monument and it is hoped that the commissioning process through open competition 
will commence in 2018.   
 
The Kevin’s Street Library Public Artwork has been installed.  The proposal by Alan Phelan 
was selected for the excellence of the artwork, its direct connection to the library and an 
interest in working with library staff in the final development of the artwork. The artwork is a 
text based sculpture using powdered coated aluminium letters.  The work uses quotes about 
libraries jumbled up in colour sequences.  The results are lines of seemingly random words 
which can be read by following the same colours to form short quotations about libraries.   
 
Statuette of Thomas Dudley – ‘Bang Bang’ by Joey Honan 
Artist and Magician Joey Honan made a proposal to the Lord Mayor to commission a bronze 
statuette of the Dublin character Thomas Dudley known as Bang Bang.  Ard-Mhéara Micheál 
MacDonncha referred the matter to the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group for a 
recommendation.  
 
Recommendation 
The Arts and Cultural Advisory Group unanimously recommended not to commission the 
statuette of Thomas Dudley as a life size statue had been rejected in January 2010 on the 
grounds that not many people remembered ‘Bang Bang’ any more and that the notion of 
commemorating ‘eccentrics’ is not necessarily sensitive to the person.  In addition other 
excellent ways of remembering Thomas Dudley were exemplified in the play by Dermot 
Bolger.  A further consideration was that there was no obvious context in which the statuette 
could be displayed and no city collection wished to add this work to their collection.   
 

Temporary Decommissioning  
 
A Fallen Bouquet by Thomas Duffy 
This pavement based sculpture on Sackville Place was commissioned in 2004 by Dublin City 
Council with support from CIÉ.  The artwork commemorates those killed and wounded in the 
two bombings on the street in 1972 and 1973.  Dublin City Council is planning public realm 
improvement works on the street and in addition, planning permission has been granted for 
a hotel beside the location of the work.  It is therefore planned to temporarily remove the 
artwork and to reinstate it at the same location or very close to it, after the public realm 
works are complete.   
 

Page 109



The Public Art Manager has met with the artist Thomas Duffy, who is a son of the bus 
conductor Thomas Duffy who was killed by the 1973 bomb, and a strategy has been agreed 
in principle that while the work is removed, he will clean and restore the bronze in 
preparation for the sculpture’s reinstatement.  The artist will be paid a fee for the work 
undertaken.   
 
Recommendation  
The Arts and Cultural Advisory Group unanimously agreed to support the temporary 
decommissioning of A Fallen Bouquet by Thomas Duffy on the terms set out above.   

 
 
Contact: Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer 

Email:  ray.yeates@dublincity.ie 

Tel:  2227849 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 110

mailto:ray.yeates@dublincity.ie


 

 

 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 

22nd January 2018 

 
Item No. 12 

 

 
 

Arts, Culture and  Recreation Strategic Policy Committee 
 

Minutes of meeting of Commemorations Committee 
 - Fochoiste na gCuimhneachán 

 
Monday 18th September at 2.00pm 
Richard O’Carroll Room, City Hall 

 

Councillors/Members Present Officials Present 

Cllr Paddy McCartan (Chair) 
Cllr Cieran Perry 
Cllr Nial Ring 

Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian 
Tara Doyle, Dublin City Public Libraries 
 

 
Also in attendance: Cormac Moore, Historian-in-Residence, North Central area; Dr Darragh 
Gannon, Historian-in-Residence, Central area. 
 

 
 

1. Apologies – Lord Mayor Micheal MacDonncha, Cllr Vincent Jackson, Margaret Hayes. 
Cllr McCartan took the chair in the absence of Cllr Jackson. 
 

2. Minutes of the meeting of 17th May: approved.  
 

3. Matters arising: B. Teeling will establish a small working group to progress the Kathleen 
Clarke portrait. 

 
4. Correspondence: none. 

 
5. Commemorations Committee dates 2017/18: The following dates were agreed:  

23rd November 2017, 31st January 2018, 29th March 2018, 30th May 2018, 25th July 2018, 
26th  September 2018, 22nd November 2018. It was noted that meeting of the 
Commemorative Naming Committee will also take place on these dates, following the 
Commemorations meetings. 

6. Commemorations programme 2017: 

 Jacob’s exhibition on display until 28th October with guided tours on Tuesday 
mornings 

 Series of Tuesday lunchtime lectures in City Hall in October on “Ireland and the 
Russian Revolutions 1917” with a total of 5 lectures  

Page 111



 

 

 1916 Garrison plaque Boland’s Mills – Clanwilliam House site to be 
redeveloped, awaiting projected date for completion. Inform Convenor of 
relatives group for Boland’s Mills garrison 

 

 1916 Grants: 22 grant applications received to date with a total of €31,835 
awarded as follows:  

Central Area:  €8500, 5 applications 

North Central: €1800, 3 applications 

North West:  €3485, 2 applications 

South Central:  €7,700, 3 applications 

South East:  €10,350, 9 applications  
 

7. Dublin Festival of History 2017: programme presented – over 90 free history events 
taking place across the city from 29 September to 14th October including many Decade 
of Commemorations events.  

 
8. Historians-in-Residence programme: total of 1,842 attendances at over 80 historian in 

residence events across the city to date including meetings with Men’s Sheds, 
community groups, local history groups, walks, radio slots. Ongoing work includes 
“History on Your Doorstep” project, quiz, sources workshops for secondary school 
students and establishing local history groups.  

 
9. A.O.B. B. Teeling tabled proposed Decade of Commemorations events for 2018 and 

estimated costs for same.  The proposals were approved by the Committee. 
 

10. Date of next meeting: 23rd November 2017 at 2pm.  

   

 

Page 112



 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 

22nd January 2018 

 
Item No. 13 

 

 

Commemorative Naming Committee 
 Minutes of Meeting held on 18th September 2017 

3.00 p.m. Richard O’Carroll Room, City Hall  
 

Attendance 
Members:      Officials Present: 

Cllr Cieran Perry (Chairperson)   Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian 

Cllr Nial Ring      Ruairi O’Cuiv, Public Art Manager  

Cllr Paddy McCartan     Jackie O’Reilly, Administrative Officer 

Cllr Frank Kennedy     Paula Ebbs, Senior Staff Officer 

Cllr Mary Freehill     Tara Doyle, Senior Librarian 

        

    

Apologies:       

Ardmhéara Micheál MacDonncha     

Cllr Séamas McGrattan 

  

1. Minutes of Meeting held on 17th May 2017 

Action: Agreed 

 

2. Matters arising  

 There were no matters arising. 

 

3. Proposed Dates for future meetings  

 Action: Agreed 

 

4. Liam Mellows Sub-Group Update – Ruairi O’Cuiv, Public Art Manager 

 

 The first meeting of the Liam Mellows Working Group took place on the 6th of 

 September, with members of the Liam Mellows Memorial Committee, An t-

 Ardmhéara Micheál MacDonncha, Cllr Áine Clancy and DCC officials.   The idea of a 

 phased approach was proposed by the Liam Mellows Committee and discussed by 

 the Group.  The design of the plinth was agreed but artist Robert Ballagh highlighted 

 the importance of the design and quality of the statue itself.  Council officials agreed 

 to investigate the planning requirements and ownership of the proposed location of 

 the sculpture.  It was proposed that this working group take charge of this project 

 with no need to come back to the Naming Committee. 

 Action: The wording of the proposed plaque to be circulated to members of the 

 Liam Mellows Working Group before the next meeting on the 10th of October.   

Page 113



5. Policy Document – Update  

 

 The Policy Document for the Commemorative Naming of Infrastructure and the 

 Provision of Monuments, Memorials and Plaques was adopted at the June City 

 Council meeting.  It is now on our website. 

  

   

6. Plaques/Monuments/Infrastructure Proposals  

 

o Naming Drumcondra Bridge “The Frank Flood Bridge” – Update  

 

 Researching living descendents of the other men who were executed along with 

 Frank Flood proved very difficult.  Management proposed the following wording as it 

 is a safe measure to include everyone who was killed in the Drumcondra ambush:- 

FRANK FLOOD BRIDGE 

1901 – 1921 

Commemorating all who died 

during the Drumcondra Ambush 

Irish War of Independence 

1919 – 1921  

 The proposer of the bridge had 2 dates in mind for the unveiling.  January 21st is the 

 anniversary of the ambush.  March 14th is the anniversary of the executions.  2018 is 

 the 200th anniversary of the erection of the bridge. 

 Action:  Wording agreed. It was agreed to have the unveiling on March 14th 2018.  
 Keep Committee informed. 

o S.S. Adela – Application 

 Management gave a brief history of the S.S. Adela which was operated by Tedcastle 

 & McCormick Ltd., one of the principal distributors of coal in Dublin City.  It was 

 travelling on the Dublin – Liverpool route with a cargo of livestock and was due to 

 return with a cargo of coal when, on the 27th December 1917 it was torpedoed by a 

 German U-Boat.  24 people lost their lives. 

o S.S. Hare – Application 

 Management gave a brief history of the S.S. Hare ship which was a regular traveller 

 between Manchester and the Port.  During the Great Lockout of 1913, this was the 

 ship that brought food parcels for the families of the locked out workers.  On 14th 

 December 1917 it was torpedoed by a German U-Boat as it travelled into Dublin from 

 Manchester.  12 people lost their lives. 

Page 114



 Approval of these plaques were agreed by members of this Committee prior to this 

 meeting via e-mail in order to ensure the deadline date for the unveiling of the 

 plaques were met.  Date of unveiling is Saturday 30th September 2017 at 1.00 p.m. 

 The S.S. Adela plaque will be erected at No. 81A Campshires, Sir John Rogerson’s 

 Quay, Dublin 2.  The S.S. Hare plaque will be erected at the Dublin Docklands 

 Building, Custom House Quay, Dublin 1. 

 Action: Wording agreed.  Circulate details of the unveilings to members. 

o George, Lily and Lolly Yeats – Update 

 Management informed members that the proposer of this application had not yet 

 received written consent from the owner of the building at 133 Lr. Baggot Street. 

 Action: Check who owns this building. Keep Committee informed.  

7. A.O.B.  

 There was no other business. 

 Next meeting Thursday 23rd November.  

 ________________ 

 Cllr Cieran Perry, 
 Chairperson. 
 

 

 

 

Page 115





 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 
 

22nd January 2018 
 

Item No. 14 

 

 
Sub-Committee on Artists Workspaces 

Minutes of Meeting held on 25th September 2017  
2.30 p.m. City Hall 

 
Attendance 

Members      Officials Present 
 Cllr Rebecca Moynihan (Chairperson)   Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer 
 Cllr Claire Byrne  
 
 Next meeting – TBC  

 
After some discussion the Purpose of the Subcommittee was agreed as follows: 

To explore on behalf of the SPC the current deficit in Artists workspaces and other 

cultural infrastructure in Dublin, and to make recommendations on strategic actions 

to help to remedy this deficit. 

The Committee discussed the Artists workspace deficit under the following headings 

1. Artist Studios and their past provision and future potential 

2. The provisions in the City Development Plan. 

3. Existing Buildings that could be repurposed to accommodate Artists. 

4. Opportunities in the Poolbeg SDZ currently before Council 

5. The Working Group from the City Council Development Department, The Arts 

Council and the Department of Culture Heritage and the Gaeltacht. 

The Flagship new Building (30-40 artists occupying buildings in new developments) Ships 

(new or repurposed building for up to 20 artists) the Rowing Boat (repurposed City Council 

owned or ‘above the shop’ or refurbished retail units) was discussed as a model for 

proceeding. 

Actions Agreed. 
To consult with the Planning Department on how best to set out in Planning 
permissions the provision for cultural infrastructure development. (RY) 
 
To ascertain the progress of the Cultural Audit in identifying deficits 
 
The Arts Office will explore the ‘rowing boat’ opportunities with Area Offices and 
report 

 _____________________  

 Cllr Rebecca Moynihan, 

 Chairperson 

 Dated: ______________ 

Page 117





1 
 

 

 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 
 

22nd January 2018 
 

Item No. 15 
 

 
 
Arts and Cultural Advisory Group 

Minutes of Meeting held on Wednesday 28th September 2017, 9.30 a.m. 
Council Chambers, City Hall 
 
 

Present: Cllr Áine Clancy (Chair), Ray Yeates, Elaina Ryan, Ruairí Ó Cuív, Gerry Kerr, 
Elaina Ryan, Iseult Byrne, Maolíosa Boyle  
  
Apologies: Cllr Claire Byrne, Willie White, Barbara Dawson, Hugh Fahey, Brendan Teeling 
 
In Attendance: Jonathan Ekwe 
 
 
1. Minutes of previous meeting held on 28th June 2017 
The minutes were approved, proposed by Ray Yeates, seconded by Ruairí Ó Cuív  
 
2. Matters Arising 
No matters arising. 
 
3. City Arts Officer Report 
The City Arts Officer presented the report on the Arts Office activities.  Outlining the 
Children’s Art in Libraries Summer Programme 2017, the programme included a 
development commission in partnership with Theatre Lovett. Jane Groves ran a residency in 
Raheny to create Secret Garden sculptures using found and natural resources inside and 
outside of the library.  
 
The City Arts Office was successful in working with the EU Lab at Dublin Culture Connects 
to secure Erasmus funding for a project to build on the Visual Thinking Strategies project 
developed with schools local to the LAB and working in partnership with the LAB, Dublin City 
Galley the Hugh Lane and the National Council for Curriculum Assessment.  
 
The LAB exhibition Future Proof,  Future Proof brings together artists (Brian Duggan - 
Sofie Loscher - Lucy McKenna - Siobhan McGibbon - Maria McKinney - Emer O Boyle - 
Meadhbh O'Connor - Matt Parker - David Stalling)  who work in scientific and technological 
contexts to contribute additional perspectives, re-frame debates, and create paths for new 
thinking to emerge.  Future Proof runs from 14th September to 14th December 2017.  
 
4. Public Art Report 
 
The Public Art Manager presented his report on ongoing commissions under the Public Art 
Programme.  He also gave verbal updates on the work of the Luke Kelly Working Group and 
the Liam Mellows Working Group. He also gave an update on progress regarding the 
permanent sculpture to mark the role which women played in the foundation of the state, a 
commission which is being funded by the Department of Culture, Heritage and the 
Gaeltacht.   
 

Page 119



2 
 

Permanent Art 
Cairn Homes through the Parks and Landscape Services consulted with the Public Art 
Manager about commissioning a sculpture for a new housing scheme Parkside near 
Balgriffin, North Dublin.  The selected artist is Eileen MacDonagh who is recognised for the 
quality of her artwork.  Cairn Housing is paying for the sculpture with a contribution toward 
artist’s fees from the Parks and Landscape Services.  The sculpture will be handed over to 
Dublin City Council when the public areas are taken in charge by the City Council.     
 
Proposals for Temporary Art 
 
PACE Sculpture in Finglas 
The proposal from PACE is to devise and fabricate a sculpture of about 2.5 metres in height 
which will represent the transition of areas such as Cabra, Finglas and Ballymun from green 
space to housing estates.  PACE Training Services provides training and support aimed 
towards assisting ex-offenders and ex-prisoners to discover their talents and unlock their 
potential.   The Group was very supportive of the work which PACE undertakes and 
discussed issues arising from the proposal and in particular issues relating to the 
identification of a suitable location for the work.   
 
Recommendation  
In light of the unresolved issues relating to a location for the sculpture, the Arts and Cultural 
Advisory Group recommended to defer a decision on this matter until the next meeting of the 
Group.   
 
Hope Flies - First Fortnight in the Civic Offices 
First Fortnight is a charity that challenges mental health prejudice through arts and cultural 
action.  The have made a proposal to present three large artworks in the form of birds from 
the glass ceiling in the Atrium of the Civic Offices.  DCC Facilities Management has offered 
to assist with the installation of the artworks.   
 
Recommendation  
The Arts and Cultural Advisory Group gave approval for project for the first fortnight in 
January 2018 as the temporary display of these large artworks in the Civic Offices will have 
the combined objective of highlighting the cause of First Fortnight while demonstrating the 
potential for excellent temporary art projects within the offices. 
 
Solomon Gallery – Sculpture by Patrick O’Reilly 
Solomon Gallery and Patrick O’Reilly have requested to temporarily display the sculpture of 
a bear by the artist on the corner of Balfe Street, Swan Yard and Harry Street for the 
duration of the road works in the area which is estimated at four to five weeks commencing 
in October.  This public display of the sculpture is to coincide with the temporary exhibition of 
work by the artist in the Westbury Hotel Car Park.  The Solomon Gallery has offered to cover 
all costs relating to the public display of the work including installation and removal and to 
provide appropriate insurances, method statements, risk assessment, etc, and to maintain 
the work during its exhibition.   
 
Recommendation  
To permit the temporary display of the sculpture by Patrick O’Reilly subject to consultation 
with the Local Area Office, Planning Department, Roads and Traffic Department and officials 
engaged in the Grafton Street Project.   
The Group emphasised that the display of this sculpture should be strictly on a temporary 
basis and that mechanisms should be explored to ensure that this is implemented.    
 
 
 
 
 

Page 120



3 
 

Decommissioning  
 
Trace by Grace Weir 
The remaining elements of the sculpture Trace by Grace Weir commissioned in 1988 and 
located on St Stephens Green have been removed to safe storage.  The artist continues to 
be satisfied at the final outcome, with her request that the work be finally decommissioned.  
She is of the opinion that the context and paving around the original sculpture was as 
important as the work itself and that the proposed relocation did not work.   
 
Recommendation 
That agreement is given for the final decommissioning of Trace by Grace Weir. 
 
Temporary removal of the Statue of Philip Lynott  
The Arts and Cultural Advisory Group gave agreement to the temporary removal of the 
statue of Philip Lynott to facilitate the repaving works on Harry Street, Balfe street, Chatham 
Street, etc.   
 
Mr Screen by Vincent Browne 
The Public Art Manager reported that he was attempting to follow up on matters relating to 
the removal of the sculpture Mr Screen by Vincent Brown to the foyer of the Savoy Cinema 
and the contention that this work is part owned by Dublin City Council and should be 
returned to display in the public realm.  
 
5. Dublin Culture Connects Report 
 
Iseult Byrne presented the Dublin Culture Connects report.  
 
It covered the many projects that are being carried out, including Community Engagement 
programmes, Tea & Chats, Culture Club, Engage the City, The National Neighbourhood, EU 
Lab, The Cultural Map, Fundraising Fellowship Dublin,  Dublin City Council’s sections 
currently planning projects with Dublin’s Culture Connects, The National Neighbourhood are:  
 
The Area Offices, Dublin City Gallery, The Hugh Lane, Dublin City Public Libraries and 
Archives, Dublin City Arts Office 
 
A publication by Dermot Bolger ‘Bang Bang & Other Dublin stories’ is in progress, 4 
monologues on characters and histories in Dublin commissioned by Dublin’s Culture 
Connects will be published in partnership with New Island Books. 
 
The National Neighbourhood, The Fundraising Fellowship Dublin, The Cultural Audit and 
Map, The EU Lab and the Culture Club.  
 
An Introduction to Fundraising for Community Groups and Arts Organisations will take place 
on Tuesday 14 November at Wood Quay Venue from 6.00pm - 9.00pm  
 
6. A.O.B.  

 

 Next meeting will take place on Tuesday 19th December 2017  
 
 

Page 121





 

 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 

22nd January 2018 

 
Item No. 16 

 

 

   MINUTES OF THE Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership Advisory Board Meeting  

Monday 9th October 2017 @ 4.45pm, Room 19, Floor 3, Block 4, Civic Offices, Wood 

Quay, D8 

Attendees: Fiona Coghlan, Antonia Martin, Declan Wallace, Shauna McIntyre, Jim Beggan, Rob 

Hartnett, Richard Fahey, Sinead McNulty, Cllr. Seamas McGrattan, Alan Morrin 

Apologies: Maurice Ahern, Mick Dawson, John Costello 

Minutes by: Alan Morrin 

 

 

ITEM 

 

SUMMARY 

 

ACTION BY 

 

TIMELINE 

FC welcomed everyone to the meeting 

2. Minutes of  
previous 
meeting 

 Proposed by RH, Seconded by RF; 
Agreed. 

  

3. Manager 
Update 

Strategy Progress 
 

 SMcI updated the board on progress 
in relation to the ‘places & spaces’ 
and ‘promoting sport & inspiring 
people’ strands of the strategy 
(documentation circulated).  
 
Some points to note:  
 
- Emma Byrne, Facilities 

Development Manager, DCC, will 
play a key role in assisting 
DCSWP to progress our aims and 
targets in the ‘places & spaces’ 
area. 

 
- DCC will not permit DCSWP to 

set up a stand alone website. 
Rather, this will be incorporated 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 123



 

into a new revamped DCC 
website next year. 

 
 AM updated the board on progress in 

relation to programmes & services 
(documentation circulated). 
 

Some points to note:  
 
- National Tennis Centre in Albert 

College Park could be considered 
a venue option for future Older 
Adult Sports Days. 
 

- Between now and Christmas, 
focus will turn to the rollout of 
GAGA (Getting All Girls Active) 
and THRIVE (targeting people 
with mental health difficulties) 
programmes 

 

- The Sports Officer team have just 
completed a 2-day Coaching 
Children Course. Some of the 
team will now be in a position to 
deliver this training to clubs and 
groups going forward. 
 

- We have applied for 60k from 
the Healthy Ireland Fund to 
expand on Change for Life 
Programmes from Jan 2018 (runs 
parallel to the Operation 
Transformation TV show).  
 

- Summer Programme Appraisal:  
(1) Bike for Life under review due 
to H&S concerns. 
(2) The Green Scene didn’t reach 
its potential due fact that Sports 
Officers had just commenced 
working in new areas and were 
still finding their feet. Bigger & 
better next year! 
 

 RF spoke of the potential of Parks Tennis 
is. However its current format is in 
severe need of rejuvenation. A new 
strategy / business plan is required. 
Tennis Ireland and the 4 Dublin Councils, 
as funders, to broach this issue with 
Parks Tennis. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 124



 

 
Highlights & Projects 
(documentation circulated) 
 

 AM/SMcI updated the board on both 
completed and future projects 
 

 
- RH commented that the list of 

future projects was quite 
athletics (running/walking) 
heavy. AM explained that the 
scope of programmes & one-off 
events would diversify and 
expand over time but for now, 
these types of activities are the 
most accessible with low cost 
implications. They provide that 
fundamental base both for 
people engaging with physical 
activity for the first time and also 
underpinning the more 
advanced/extreme physical 
activities carried out by others. 
 

 
4.  
Board 
Membership 

 

 
 A document was circulated detailing 

current board membership, recent 
resignations & current identified 
gaps. A discussion ensued. 
 
Some points to note:  

 

- Meetings should not solely exist 
for The Partnership Manager to 
update the Board on what’s 
happening on the ground. There 
needs to be more input and 
engagement from the NGB’s and 
other organisations represented 
around the table. They need to 
inform us of any initiatives of 
their own so that we can discuss 
how the Partnership might be 
able to link in. Although the 
Board is ‘advisory’ in name, in 
practice it should be more about 
implementing any action plans 
decided around the table. 
 

- The Board worked well when the 
strategy was being planned as 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 125



 

the smaller working groups were 
more cohesive. Now that the 
strategy is in place and the 
restructure has happened on the 
ground, it is time for the 
Advisory Board as individuals to 
get more involved. The potential 
is there and the consensus is that 
everyone is willing and able. 

 
- DCC/DCSWP don’t market or 

promote ourselves well. This has 
been a long standing issue and 
there was a general consensus 
around the table that this needs 
to change if we are to move in 
the right direction.  
 

- Identified gaps on the Board in 
terms of organisations include 
the FAI (person with a marketing 
skillset preferable), 
Gymnastics/Athletics 
(fundamentals), HSE (preferred 
representative already 
identified) & the Federation of 
Irish Sport (new CEO) 

 
 SMcI to circulate e-mail to Board 

Members inviting expressions of 
interest to replace FC as Chairperson 
to the Board 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SMcI 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ASAP 
 

 
5. Promoting 
Sport & 
Inspiring 
People 

 
 A key priority for 2018 is the 

Promoting Sport & Inspiring People 
strategic goal. In light of this, SMcI 
gave a presentation to the Board on 
a concept to deliver on this goal 
through a series of events and 
promotional activity which seek to 
emulate elements of what Bristol 
have done, as current European City 
of Sport : 

 
After the presentation a discussion 
ensued. Some points to note: 
 
- All Board Members present were 

happy for this to be the main 
focus of work for 2018. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 126



 

- Board Members liked the fact 
that the proposed event 
comprised of a number of 
strands rather than just a stand 
alone one-off event.  
 
 

- Important not to take on too 
much but the concept presented 
looks to have struck the right 
balance.  
 

- Possible big gains for clubs across 
the city in terms of increased 
exposure & new members. It is 
vital that they are heavily 
involved for obvious 
sustainability reasons but also to 
help ease the financial burden 
(ready made facilities & 
manpower). 
 

- Event must be bigger than 
European Week of Sport so as 
not to get lost within it.  
 

- Must be marketed broadly and 
there will be a need for media 
partnerships.  
 

- Businesses will be delighted to 
get involved with something of 
this scale and could also then 
help to promote it through their 
own channels.  
 

- Ambassadors are key, both 
sporting celebrities and everyday 
people.  

 
- Branding (incl. logo & associated 

imagery) should be carefully 
selected so as to be fully 
inclusive, representing all ages 
and abilities. 
 

- Take inspiration from other 
successful large scale events 
such as Culture Night, Heritage 
Week etc… and see what works 
for them so that we can build our 
model out accordingly. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 127



 

 

Working Group 
 

- RH, SMcN & FC put their names 
forward for the Working Group. 
These were noted and notice of 
the first meeting for this group 
will be circulated shortly. 

  
- SMcN reminded everyone that 

it’s important for Board 
Members to lend their time & 
expertise only to assist in getting 
new projects/events associated 
with the current strategy focus 
(promoting sport & inspiring 
people) initiated & progressed. 
They should not be involved on 
an ongoing basis thereafter as 
this will leave individuals free to 
concentrate on delivering the 
next element of the strategy (i.e. 
‘places & spaces’ in 2019) 

 

 

 

SMcI / AM to finalise 

working group & 

circulate notice of 

initial meeting 

 

 

ASAP 
 

 
6. Schedule 
of Meetings 
for 2018 

 

 

 It is proposed to limit Board 
Meetings to 4 per year from 2018 
onwards to give scope for any 
smaller sub-committees formed to 
progress their work. Subsequently, 
the schedule of dates for 2018 was 
circulated to all Board Members. It 
was acknowledged that the 
September date clashes with an SPC 
meeting and therefore, may have to 
be rescheduled closer to the time. 
   

 
 

 

 
9. A.O.B.  

 

 FC thanked everyone for their 
attendance and confirmed the next 
meeting will take place on Monday, 
Feb 5th 2018, at 4.45pm. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 128



 

Dublin City Council – Commemorations Committee – Draft Minutes 23
rd

 November 2017, p.1 

 

 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 

22nd January 2018 

 
Item No. 17 

 

 
Arts, Culture, Recreation and Community Strategic Policy Committee 

 
Breviate of Draft Minutes of meeting of Commemorations Committee - Fochoiste na 

gCuimhneachán 
 

Thursday 23rd November at 2.00pm 
Richard O’Carroll Room, City Hall 

 
 

1. Apologies – Lord Mayor Micheal MacDonncha 
 

2. Minutes of the meeting of 18th September approved with one amendment to remove 
“Also in attendance: Cormac Moore, Historian-in-Residence, North Central area; Dr 
Darragh Gannon, Historian-in-Residence, Central area” 

 
3. Matters arising:  Cllr. Flynn requested update on Tenement Museum as it was funded 

as 1916/2016 permanent reminder project. DCC Heritage Officer will be asked to report 
for next meeting. Boland’s Mills 1916 Plaque – new building development at 
Clanwilliam House maybe ready after 2020. Cllr. Ring will communicate this to 
Convenor of Boland’s Mills Garrison Group.  

 
4. Correspondence: email from Decade of Centenaries/Commemoration Unit of the 

Department of Culture, Heritage and the Gaeltacht with invitation to contribute to public 
consultation process for commemorations in 2018-23.  
 

5. Commemorations programme 2017 and 2018: B. Teeling gave an update on 2017 
programme: Dublin Festival of History featured talks on many significant 2017 
anniversaries including Irish and international events. The 2017 Festival was the most 
successful to date with 7,700 attendances at 90 free events.   

The exhibition Jacob’s Biscuit Factory and Dublin: an assorted history on display in City Hall 
from 27 November until end of March 2018 to include free tours on Saturdays with the 
exhibition researcher Wendy Williams.  

B. Teeling reported on projects for 2018 commemorations including exhibitions on: 

 Suffragist City: Women and the Vote in January and February (to include seminar on 
17th February) 

 Irish women and the Great War in March and April.  

 Armistice/Returning home in November and December  

City Archivist is working with Ardmheara on seminar on Conscription crisis for 18 April 2018 
in the Mansion House. 

Page 129



 

Dublin City Council – Commemorations Committee – Draft Minutes 23
rd

 November 2017, p.2 

 

Cllr Ring enquired about Bliain na Gaeilge 2018. M. Hayes reported that libraries will focus 
on developing Irish language book collections and language exchanges.  

Update on Decade of Commemoration grants: Grants awarded as follows - 

Central Area: €8,500; North West Area: €3,485; North Central Area:  €1,800; South Central 
Area: €11,700; South East Area: €10,350 

Workshops in each area in New Year on grant application process and HIR project. 

6. Historians-in-Residence programme: historians continuing to work with groups 
across the city and have been focusing on Men’s Sheds and secondary schools. They 
have set-up new local history/heritage groups in Liberties and Coolock; delivering Irish 
Revolution lecture series in Wheatfield prison; Donal Fallon working on project with 
Tenement museum. History on Your Doorstep will launch in New Year. Darragh 
Gannon and Brian Hanley have resigned and Bernard Kelly has joined the team. An 
event will be held soon to highlight their work and the work of DCC Decade of 
Commemorations. 

 
7. A.O.B. New exhibition in DCLA on Patrick O’Connell – the man who saved FC 

Barcelona on display until 20 December. 
 

Cllr Flynn raised problem of inaccurate information on city walking tours and need to 
address this. B. Teeling will review and report back.  
 
Cllr. Flynn pointed out that City Hall plaque is inaccurate as references “Republic of 
Ireland”, should be Irish Republic.  
 

8. Date of next meeting: 31st January 2018 at 2pm.  

   

Councillors/Members Present Officials Present 

Cllr Vincent Jackson (Chair) 
Cllr Paddy McCartan 
Cllr Cieran Perry 
Cllr Nial Ring 
Cllr Mannix Flynn  

Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian 
Margaret Hayes, City Librarian  
Tara Doyle, Dublin City Public Libraries 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 130



 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 

22nd January 2018 

 
Item No. 18 

 

 

Commemorative Naming Committee 
Breviate of Draft Minutes of Meeting held on 23rd November 2017  

1.00 p.m. Richard O’Carroll Room, City Hall 
 

 

1. Minutes of Meeting held on 18th September 2017. 
   Action: Agreed  
 

2. Matters arising 
   Action: No matters arising  
 

3. Liam Mellows Sub-Group update  

 Management gave an update of the progress of the Liam Mellows Sub-Group.  There 

 are various issues currently being discussed such as planning, funding, wording on 

 the plinth.  The committee have decided to go for full planning permission rather than 

 a part VIII.  The approximate cost of the statue is €53,500.  The wording on the plinth 

 includes a list of names of people who died for the Irish Republic.  Management 

 reminded members that permission should be sought from living descendents of 

 those listed as stated in the policy document for Commemorative Naming of 

 Infrastructure and the Provision of Monuments, Memorials and Plaques. The Liam 

 Mellows Committee will provide an update at a meeting on 12th December in relation 

 to the possibility of a selective call for artists. A discussion on the function of the Sub-

 Group took place.  

  Action: Noted.  Keep members updated. 

 

4. Plaques/Memorials/Infrastructure Proposals 

o Frank Flood Bridge 

 Members were informed that the unveiling of the bridge will be organised with the 

 assistance from the North West Area Office.  The bridge is currently undergoing 

 refurbishment works and it was suggested that the unveiling should possibly take 

 place in conjunction with the completion of the works.  The original agreed date for 

 the unveiling was March 14th.  The date of the completion of the works is not yet 

 known but it is envisaged that it will be January 2018. 

 Action: Check with the proposer if the date of March 14th could be moved to an 

 earlier date. 

o Markey Robinson, Artist – Application 

Page 131



 Concerns were raised regarding this application.  As many artists exhibited their 

 works at this gallery, members felt that it could be seen to select one artist over 

 others.  They also referred to the policy document which states “the person/s must 

 have made a unique and outstanding contribution to the life or history of Dublin 

 through outstanding achievement, distinctive service or significant community 

 contribution”.  

 Action: Refer to the Arts and Culture Advisory Group for their advice.  

o Welsh Chapel – Update 

 

Management informed members that after another site visit and meeting with the 

tenant of this building, that the tenants are now considering re-painting the exterior of 

this building, which would then allow the erection of the plaque.  DCC may offer a 

financial contribution towards these works. 

 

Action: Arrange to meet the tenants before Christmas to progress these works. 

Keep members informed. 

 

5. A.O.B.  

 Management informed members that an e-mail was received in relation to re-naming 

 Hume Street to John Hume Street. 

 Action:  It was agreed this is not a matter for the Commemorative Naming 

 Committee. It is a matter for the South East Area Committee. 

 Next Meeting: Wednesday 31st January 2018  

_________________ 

Cllr Cieran Perry, 
Chairperson.  
 
 

Attendance  

 

 

Members Officials Present 
 

Cllr. Cieran Perry (Chairperson) Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian 
Cllr Nial Ring Jackie O’Reilly, Administrative Officer 
Cllr Paddy McCartan Paula Ebbs, Senior Staff Officer 
 Gabrielle McClelland, Staff Officer 

 
Apologies: 

Ardmhéara Micheál MacDonncha 

Cllr Séamas McGrattan 

Cllr Frank Kennedy  

Page 132



1 
 

 

 

 
Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 
22nd January 2018 

 
Item No. 19 

 

 
 
Arts and Cultural Advisory Group 

Breviate of Draft Minutes of Meeting held on Wednesday 

30th November 2017, 9.30 a.m. Council Chambers, City Hall 

 

 
1. Minutes of previous meeting held on 28th September 2017 
The minutes were approved, proposed by Shane DeBlacam, seconded by Maolíosa Boyle.  
 
2. Matters Arising  
Willie White enquired about the situation regarding Mr Screen by Vincent Brown.  The Public 
Art Manager explained that he was still pursuing the matter of reaching agreement with the 
Dublin Cinema Group that it be returned to display in the public realm preferably displayed 
outside a cinema in the City Centre.  Councillor Mannix Flynn stated categorically that Dublin 
City Council had ownership of the statue as this was one of a series of works commissioned 
to celebrate the Dublin Millennium. The Public Art Manager agreed to write to the Cinema 
Group in this regard.  
 
3. Establishment of Dublin Culture Company  
Gerry Kerry raised the issue of why the report by the Chief Executive on the formation of 
Dublin Culture Company had not been brought before the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group 
before presentation to the SPC.  This viewpoint was also endorsed by Cllr Mannix Flynn.  
Members of the Advisory Group requested more detailed information about the formation 
and operation of the company.  It was agreed that the matter would be discussed at the next 
meeting of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group and to invite the Chief Executive to attend.   
 
4. City Arts Officer Report 
The City Arts Officer gave updates on the Creative Ireland Programme and in particular on 
the programme with schools. He gave a progress report on the Arts Office Grants 
Assessment which included external assessors as well City Councillors.  He also reported 
on plans for artists work spaces. Six locations that are not suitable for housing have been 
proposed by the Housing Department. He also explained how he had hosted a seminar in 
the LAB on Workplace Harassment in the Arts and about policies to address this issue.  
 
The City Arts Officer also presented the report on the Arts Office activities including the 
exhibition in the LAB Gallery Future Proof which brought together the work of eight artists 
collaborating with scientists.  He also reported on the winter programme for Children’s Art in 
Libraries concentrated on two Creative Hubs: Coolock and Ballyfermot.  I Am Baba a new 
theatre work for babies ages 0 -12 months, was commissioned under the Exploring and 
Thinking initiative of the four Dublin Councils. He also reported that the Arts Office team of 
Liz Coman, Hugh Fahey and Maura Carty are involved in Permission to Wonder, a 3-year 
project funded by the EU’s Erasmus+ programme which aims to support educators from 
local arts and education communities to test the Visual Thinking Strategies method to 
enhance learning with visual arts.  
 
 
 

Page 133



2 
 

 
   
5. Public Art 
The Public Art Manager presented his report on ongoing commissions under the Public Art 
Programme.  

He also gave verbal updates on the work of the Luke Kelly Working Group and the Liam 
Mellows Working Group. He also gave an update on progress on the commissioning of the 
National Monument to mark the role which women played in the foundation of the state, a 
commission which is being funded by the Department of Culture, Heritage and the 
Gaeltacht. The Group was informed that BEL, the Environment and Energy Agency in the 
Brussels-Capital region contacted Dublin City Council to request permission to reproduce 
photographs of Sven Anderson’s sound installation Continuous Drift in Meeting House 
Square and the (as yet) incomplete sound environment in Smithfield as part of BEL EXPO, a 
permanent exhibition for the general public.   

Kevin’s Street Library Public Art Commission 
Cllr Mannix Flynn requested a report from the Public Art Manager on the process leading to 
the appointment of artist Alan Phelan for the Kevin Street Library Public Art Commission.  
The Public Art Manager agreed to provide this without delay.  

 
Proposals for Permanent Art 
 
Statuette of Thomas Dudley – ‘Bang Bang’ by Joey Honan 
Artist and magician Joey Honan made a proposal to the Lord Mayor to commission a bronze 
statuette of the Dublin character Thomas Dudley known as Bang Bang.  Ard-Mhéara Micheál 
MacDonncha referred the matter to the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group for a 
recommendation.  

Recommendation 
The Arts and Cultural Advisory Group unanimously recommended not to commission the 
statuette of Thomas Dudley as a life size statue had been rejected in January 2010 on the 
grounds that not many people remembered ‘Bang Bang’ any more and that the notion of 
commemorating ‘eccentrics’ is not necessarily sensitive to the person’.  A further 
consideration was that there was no obvious context in which the statuette could be 
displayed and no city collection wished to add this work to their collection.   
 

Temporary Decommissioning  
 
A Fallen Bouquet by Thomas Duffy 
This pavement based sculpture on Sackville Place was commissioned in 2004 by Dublin City 
Council with support from CIÉ.  The artwork commemorates those killed and wounded in the 
two bombings on the street in 1972 and 1973.  Dublin City Council is planning public realm 
improvement works on the street and in addition, planning permission has been granted for 
a hotel beside the location of the work.  It is therefore planned to temporarily remove the 
artwork and to reinstate it at the same location or very close to it, after the public realm 
works are complete.  The Public Art Manager has met with the artist Thomas Duffy, who is a 
son of the bus conductor Thomas Duffy who was killed by the 1973 bomb, and a strategy 
has been agreed in principle that while the work is removed, he will clean and restore the 
bronze in preparation for the sculpture’s reinstatement.  The artist will be paid a fee for the 
work undertaken.   

Recommendation  
The Arts and Cultural Advisory Group unanimously agreed to support the temporary 
decommissioning of A Fallen Bouquet by Thomas Duffy on the terms set out above.  
 
 
  

Page 134



3 
 

 
6. Dublin Culture Connects Report 
Iseult Byrne presented the Dublin Culture Connects report.  It covered the many projects that 
are being carried out, including Community Engagement programmes, Tea & Chats, Culture 
Club, Engage the City, The National Neighbourhood, EU Lab, The Cultural Map, Fundraising 
Fellowship Dublin, Dublin City Council’s sections currently planning projects with Dublin’s 
Culture Connects, The National Neighbourhood, Fundraising Fellowship, Culture Night Café, 
Irish Sign Language Awareness Week workshop, Zeminar, ConneXions, Broom Bridge 
Mural, The Knowledge Information Exchange Workshop.  
 
7. Dublin City Gallery the Hugh Lane 
The Gallery Director reported on projects and events in the gallery including capital works 
programme, Sheriff Street Project Walk with Light, Eithne Jordan Tableau and The Ocean 
after Nature exhibitions, Dublin Gallery weekend and Christmas activities.   
  
8. Public Libraries  
The report on public libraries reflected statists for quarter 3 of 2017, new City Library and 
Parnell Square Cultural Quarter, Commemorations – Historian in residence, Creative 
Ireland/UNESCO City of Literature, Dublin North Inner City Project, Dublin Festival of 
History, SWIFT350, Science Week and projects update.   
 
9. A.O.B.  

 Next meeting will take place on Wednesday the 17th of January 2018 in the Richard 
O’Carroll Room, City Hall at 9.30 a.m.  

 
 
Present: Cllr Áine Clancy (Chair), Ray Yeates, Elaina Ryan, Ruairí Ó Cuív, Gerry Kerr, 
Iseult Byrne, Maolíosa Boyle, Willie White, Barbara Dawson, Shane DeBlacam, Cllr John 
Lyons, Cllr Mannix Flynn,    
Apologies: Cllr Claire Byrne, Hugh Fahey, Brendan Teeling 
In Attendance: Vera Smyth 
 

Page 135




	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting held on 13th November 2017
	2 Presentation on Business To Arts and Dublin City Council Partnership Overview - Andrew Hetherington, Chief Executive
	3 Presentation on Arts Education and Learning - Erasmus+ EU Funding and Project Implementation - Liz Coman, Asst. Arts Officer
	4 Report on the Passport for Leisure and Over 65's Scheme - Jim Beggan, Senior Executive Officer
	7 End of Year Report on the Dublin City Local Economic and Community Plan 2016 - 2021 (LECP)
	8 Executive Summary on Creative Ireland Dublin City Programme 2017 - Margaret Hayes, Dublin City Librarian
	11 Management Update
	12 Approved Minutes of the Commemorations Sub-Committee meeting held 18th September 2017.
	13 Approved Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee meeting held 18th September 2017
	14 Approved  Minutes of the Sub-Committee on Artists Workspace meeting held 25th September 2017
	15 Approved Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group meeting held 28th September 2017
	16 Approved Minutes of Dublin City Sports and Wellbeing Partnership Advisory Board meeting held 9th October 2017
	17 Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Commemorations Sub-Committee meeting held 23rd November 2017
	18 Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee meeting held 23rd November 2017
	19 Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group meeting held 30th November 2017



